
 

 

Am unrhyw ymholiad yn ymwneud â'r agenda hwn cysylltwch â Emma Sullivan 
 (Rhif Ffôn: 01443 864420   Ebost: sullie@caerphilly.gov.uk) 

 
Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 16 Chwefror 2023 

 
 

I bwy bynnag a fynno wybod, 
 
Bydd cyfarfod aml-leoliad o'r Cabinet yn cael ei gynnal yn yn  Nhŷ Penallta a thrwy Microsoft Teams ar  
Dydd Mercher, 22ain Chwefror, 2023 am 1.00 pm. i ystyried materion a gynhwysir yn yr agenda 

canlynol.  Mae croeso i chi ddefnyddio’r iaith Gymraeg yn y cyfarfod, a dylid rhoi cyfnod rhybudd o 3 
diwrnod gwaith os ydych yn dymuno gwneud hynny. Bydd gwasanaeth cyfieithu ar y pryd yn cael ei 
ddarparu ar gais. 
 
Gall aelodau'r Cyhoedd neu'r Wasg fynychu'n bersonol yn Nhŷ Penallta neu gallant weld y cyfarfod yn fyw 
drwy'r ddolen ganlynol: https://civico.net/caerphilly . 
 
Bydd y cyfarfod hwn yn cael ei ffrydio'n fyw ac yn cael ei recordio a bydd ar gael i'w weld ar wefan y 
Cyngor, ac eithrio trafodaethau sy'n ymwneud ag eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig. Felly, bydd 
delweddau/sain yr unigolion sy'n siarad ar gael yn gyhoeddus i bawb trwy'r recordiad ar wefan y Cyngor: 
www.caerffili.gov.uk  
 
 

Yr eiddoch yn gywir, 

 
Christina Harrhy 

PRIF WEITHREDWR 
 

A G E N D A 
 

Tudalennau 
  
1  I dderbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb  

 
 

2  Datganiadau o Ddiddordeb. 
 

Pecyn Dogfennau Cyhoeddus

https://civico.net/caerphilly
http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/


  

 
 

Atgoffi’r Cynghorwyr a Swyddogion o'u cyfrifoldeb personol i ddatgan unrhyw fuddiannau 
personol a/neu niweidiol mewn perthynas ag unrhyw eitem o fusnes ar yr agenda hwn yn unol â 
Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000, Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor a'r Cod Ymddygiad ar gyfer Cynghorwyr 
a Swyddogion.  

 
I gymeradwyo a llofnodi’r cofnodion canlynol:- 
 
3  Cabinet 25fed Ionawr 2023.  

1 - 4 
 

4  Cabinet fel Ymddiriedolwyr Sefydliad y Glowyr Coed Duon a gynhaliwyd ar 25 Ionawr 2023.  
5 - 6 

 

Blaenraglen Waith y Cabinet – Nodi. 
 
5  Blaenraglen Waith y Cabinet.  

7 - 10 
 

I dderbyn ac ystyried yr adroddiad(au) canlynol y mae angen penderfyniadau gweithredol arnynt: - 
 
6  Grant Cartrefi Gwag Cenedlaethol.  

11 - 16 
 

7  Ffurfioli Model y Gwasanaeth Ieuenctid.  
17 - 22 

 

8  Cynllun Rhyddhad Ardrethi Manwerthu, Hamdden a Lletygarwch Llywodraeth Cymru 2023/24.  
23 - 28 

 

9  Cynigion Cyllideb 2023/24.  
29 - 68 

 

 
Cylchrediad: 
 

Cynghorwyr 
 C. Andrews, S. Cook, E. Forehead, N. George, P. Leonard, S. Morgan, C. Morgan, J. Pritchard, 
J. Simmonds a E. Stenner,  
 
A Swyddogion Priodol. 
 
SUT FYDDWN YN DEFNYDDIO EICH GWYBODAETH 
Bydd yr unigolion hynny sy’n mynychu cyfarfodydd pwyllgor i siarad/roi tystiolaeth yn cael eu henwi yng nghofnodion y cyfarfo d 
hynny, weithiau bydd hyn yn cynnwys eu man gweithio neu fusnes a’r barnau a fynegir. Bydd cofnodion o’r cyfarfod gan gynnwys  
manylion y siaradwyr ar gael i’r cyhoedd ar wefan y Cyngor ar www.caerffili.gov.uk. ac eithrio am drafodaethau sy’n ymwneud a g 
eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig.  
Mae gennych nifer o hawliau mewn perthynas â’r wybodaeth, gan gynnwys yr hawl i gael mynedia d at wybodaeth sydd gennym 
amdanoch a’r hawl i gwyno os ydych yn anhapus gyda’r modd y mae eich gwybodaeth yn cael ei brosesu.  
Am wybodaeth bellach ar sut rydym yn prosesu eich gwybodaeth a’ch hawliau, ewch i’r Hysbysiad Preifatrwydd Cyfarfodydd 
Pwyllgor Llawn ar ein gwefan neu cysylltwch â Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol drwy e-bostio griffd2@caerffili.gov.uk  neu ffoniwch  
01443 863028. 

 

http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd
http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd


  

 
CABINET 

 

COFNODION Y CYFARFOD AML-LEOLIAD A GYNHALIWYD YN NHŶ PENALLTA 

A THRWY MICROSOFT TEAMS 

AR DDYDD MERCHER, 25AIN IONAWR 2023 AM 1PM  

 
YN BRESENNOL: 

 
Y Cynghorydd S. Morgan – Cadeirydd 

 
Cynghorwyr: 

 
 J. Pritchard (Aelod Cabinet dros Ffyniant, Adfywio a Newid Hinsawdd), C. Andrews (Aelod 

Cabinet dros Addysg a Chymunedau), S. Cook (Aelod Cabinet dros Dai), N. George (Aelod 
Cabinet dros Wasanaethau Corfforaethol ac Eiddo), E. Forehead (Aelod Cabinet dros Ofal 
Cymdeithasol), P. Leonard (Aelod Cabinet dros Gynllunio a Diogelu’r Cyhoedd), C. Morgan 
(Aelod Cabinet dros Wastraff, Hamdden a Mannau Gwyrdd), Y Cynghorydd J. Simmonds 
(Aelod Cabinet dros Briffyrdd a Chludiant) ac E. Stenner (Aelod Cabinet dros Gyllid a 
Pherfformiad).  
 

 Ynghyd â: 
 

C. Harrhy (Prif Weithredwr), R. Edmunds (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Addysg a Gwasanaethau 
Corfforaethol), D. Street (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Thai), 
M.S. Williams (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Economi a’r Amgylchedd).  
 
 

Yn bresennol hefyd: 
 

S. Harris (Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Ariannol a Swyddog Adran 151), R. Tranter (Pennaeth 
Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Swyddog Monitro), N. Taylor-Williams (Pennaeth Tai), J. Lougher 
(Rheolwr Datblygu Chwaraeon a Hamdden), J. Lloyd (Swyddog Gwasanaethau Pwyllgor),  
S. Pugh (Pennaeth Cyfathrebu), E. Sullivan (Uwch Swyddog Gwasanaethau Pwyllgor). 

 
 

TREFNIADAU COFNODI A PHLEIDLEISIO  

 
Atgoffodd yr Arweinydd y rheini a oedd yn bresennol bod y cyfarfod yn cael ei ffrydio’n fyw, ac 
y byddai recordiad ar gael i'w weld ar wefan y Cyngor, ac eithrio trafodaethau sy’n ymwneud ag 
eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig. Cliciwch Yma i Wylio. 

 
 
1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB 

 
 Ni dderbyniwyd unrhyw ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb. 
 
2. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT 

 
 Ni dderbyniwyd unrhyw ddatganiadau o fuddiant. 
 
 
3. COFNODION – 30AIN TACHWEDD 2022 

Page 1

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 3

https://civico.net/caerphilly


  

 

 PENDERFYNWYD cymeradwyo cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 30ain Tachwedd 2022 
fel cofnod cywir. 

 
 
4. COFNODION – 14eg RHAGFYR 2022 
 

 PENDERFYNWYD cymeradwyo cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 14eg Rhagfyr 2022 fel 
cofnod cywir. 

 
  
5.         BLAENRAGLEN WAITH Y CABINET – I’W NODI 
 

Cafodd Blaenraglen Waith y Cabinet ei chyflwyno i’r Cabinet, a oedd yn manylu ar yr 
adroddiadau a drefnwyd tan 26ain Gorffennaf 2023.  

  
 Roedd yr Arweinydd yn falch o weld bod Blaenraglen Waith y Cabinet wedi cael ei llenwi mor 
bell ymlaen llaw ac atgoffodd y Cabinet, fel dogfen fyw, y gallai newid. 
 
Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod y Blaenraglen Waith yn cael ei 
nodi. Drwy godi dwylo, cytunwyd yn unfrydol.  
 

 
6. DIWEDDARIAD AR GYLLIDO BRYN CARNO 
 

 Rhoddwyd ystyriaeth i'r adroddiad a oedd yn diweddaru'r Cabinet ar benderfyniad terfynol 
Llywodraeth Cymru ar setliad cyllid y cynllun inswleiddio waliau allanol aflwyddiannus ar 86 o 
dai ar Ystâd Bryn Carno, Rhymni.  

 
 Nododd y Cabinet benderfyniad Llywodraeth Cymru i ddyfarnu grant ffurfiol o £1.903 miliwn 

mewn perthynas â’r gwaith adfer ar y 50 o eiddo perchen-feddianwyr yr effeithiwyd arnyn nhw 
ym Mryn Carno, serch hynny, roedd hynny’n golygu bod angen i gyfraniad Tai Caerffili 
gynyddu £563,1000 i gyfanswm cyfraniad y prosiect o £1,195,800. Cadarnhaodd swyddogion 
y byddai'r cyllid yn dod o Gyfrif y Cynllun Busnes a Refeniw Tai cyfredol.  

 
 Croesawodd y Cabinet yr adroddiad ac y gellid datrys y problemau hyn i drigolion Bryn Carno, 

yr effeithiwyd yn andwyol ar eu bywydau yn sgil yr insiwleiddio aflwyddiannus, ac y gallent 
bellach gael sicrwydd bellach bod camau unioni ar eu ffordd. 

 
 Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhellion a gynhwyswyd yn 
adroddiad y Swyddog yn cael eu cymeradwyo, a thrwy Microsoft Forms, cytunwyd yn unfrydol 
ar hyn. 

 
  Oherwydd y rhesymau a gynhwyswyd yn adroddiad y Swyddog, PENDERFYNWYD: - 
 

1. Nodi diweddariad a phenderfyniad Llywodraeth Cymru. 
 
2. Cynllun diwygiedig, costau, amserlen cyflawni a chyfraniad arian cyfatebol 

ychwanegol y Cyfrif Refeniw Tai mewn perthynas ag eiddo sy'n berchen i'r 
Cyngor, i gyflawni'r cynllun deiliadaeth niwtral gan Tai Caerffili. 

 
 
7. DYFODOL CLWB BOWLIO DAN DO ISLWYN  
 

Rhoddwyd ystyriaeth i'r adroddiad a oedd yn diweddaru'r Cabinet am y sefyllfa ddiweddaraf 
mewn perthynas â Chlwb Bowlio Dan Do Islwyn ac amlinellwyd y cyfleoedd a'r cyfyngiadau i’r 
Cyngor ar hyn o bryd. Roedd yr adroddiad hefyd yn gofyn am gymeradwyaeth y Cabinet i 

Page 2



  

fwrw ymlaen â phroses gaffael i sicrhau gweithredwr masnachol i reoli'r cyfleuster ac i wneud 
cytundeb priodol. 
 
Roedd y Cabinet am ddiolch i Aelodau Pwyllgor Clwb Bowls Dan Do Islwyn ac i’r Swyddogion 
J. Lougher a M.S. Williams am eu holl waith caled. Croesawodd y Cabinet yr adroddiad fel 
enghraifft wych o gydweithio llwyddiannus ac o'r hyn y gellir ei gyflawni wrth gydweithio a 
gweithio'n wahanol. Gall cyfleusterau cymunedol o’r fath gael eu hadfywio a’u cadw. 

  

Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhellion a gynhwyswyd yn 
yr adroddiad yn cael eu cymeradwyo, a thrwy Microsoft Forms, cytunwyd yn unfrydol ar hyn. 

 
Oherwydd y rhesymau a gynhwyswyd yn adroddiad y Swyddog, PENDERFYNWYD:- 
 

1.  Awdurdodi swyddogion i fwrw ymlaen â phroses gaffael i sicrhau cynnig masnachol 
ar gyfer rheoli’r cyfleuster, gyda chytundeb newydd i’w wneud gyda’r darparwr 
llwyddiannus am gyfnod o 10 mlynedd (gyda’r opsiwn i ymestyn) gan gychwyn ar 
ddechrau’r tymor bowls dan do yn 2023 (Medi 2023). 
 

  
2.  Cymeradwyo’r cytundeb masnachol sy’n sicrhau bod y Bowls yn parhau i fod y prif 

bwyslais o fewn y cyfleuster a bod yr elfen hon yn parhau i gael ei threfnu gan 
Bwyllgor Bowls Dan Do Islwyn.  

 
  
8. PRAWF LLES Y CYHOEDD 

 
Rhoddodd yr Aelodau ystyriaeth i Brawf Lles y Cyhoedd a daethant i'r casgliad, ar ôl pwyso a 
mesur, bod lles y cyhoedd o gadw'r eithriad yn drech na lles y cyhoedd wrth ddatgelu'r 
wybodaeth a: - 

 
PENDERFYNWYD yn unol ag Adran 100(4) o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Cymru 1972 
gwahardd y cyhoedd o weddill y cyfarfod oherwydd y datgeliad tebygol iddynt o 
wybodaeth eithriedig fel y'i diffinnir ym mharagraff 14 a 16 o Atodlen 12A o Ddeddf 
Llywodraeth Cymru 1972. 
 

 
9. YMESTYN YMDDEOLIAD HYBLYG  OHERWYDD AMGYLCHIADAU EITHRIADOL    

– GWASANAETHAU CORFFORAETHOL   
 

Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhellion a gynhwyswyd yn 
yr adroddiad yn cael eu cymeradwyo, a thrwy Microsoft Forms, cytunwyd yn unfrydol ar hyn. 
 

 
Oherwydd y rhesymau a gynhwyswyd  yn adroddiad y Swyddog, PENDERFYNWYD 
cymeradwyo’r argymhelliad yn 3.1. 
 

   
Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 13:20. 

 

Cymeradwywyd a llofnodwyd fel cofnod cywir yn amodol ar unrhyw gywiriadau a wneir yn y 
cyfarfod i’w gynnal ar 22ain Chwefror 2023. 

 
 

____________________ 
CADEIRYDD  

Page 3



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 4



  

 
 

CABINET FEL YMDDIRIEDOLWYR SEFYDLIAD Y GLOWYR, COED 
DUON  

 

COFNODION Y CYFARFOD AML-LEOLIAD A GYNHALIWYD YN NHŶ PENALLTA 

A THRWY MICROSOFT TEAMS 

AR DDYDD MERCHER, 25AIN IONAWR 2023 AM 1.30PM 
 

YN BRESENNOL: 
 

Y Cynghorydd S. Morgan – Cadeirydd 
 

Cynghorwyr: 
 
 J. Pritchard (Aelod Cabinet dros Ffyniant, Adfywio a Newid Hinsawdd), N. George (Aelod 

Cabinet dros Wasanaethau Corfforaethol ac Eiddo), C. Andrews (Aelod Cabinet dros Addysg a 
Chymunedau), S. Cook (Aelod Cabinet dros Dai), J. Simmonds (Aelod Cabinet dros Briffyrdd a 
Chludiant), E. Forehead (Aelod Cabinet dros Ofal Cymdeithasol), P. Leonard (Aelod Cabinet 
dros Gynllunio a Diogelu’r Cyhoedd) ac C. Morgan (Aelod Cabinet dros Wastraff, Hamdden a 
Mannau Gwyrdd). 

 
 Ynghyd â: 

 
C. Harrhy (Prif Weithredwr), D. Street (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Gwasanaethau  
Cymdeithasol a Thai), M. S. Williams (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Economi a’r Amgylchedd) 
ac S. Harris (Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Ariannol a Swyddog Adran 151). 

 
Yn bresennol hefyd: 

 
R. Tranter (Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Swyddog Monitro), A. Bolter (Rheolwr 
Economi Ymwelwyr a Chyrchfannau), E. Tong (Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Theatr a’r 
Celfyddydau), R. Kyte (Pennaeth Cynllunio ac Adfywio), J. Lloyd (Swyddog Gwasanaethau 
Pwyllgor), E. Sullivan (Uwch Swyddog Gwasanaethau Pwyllgor). 
 
 
TREFNIADAU COFNODI A PHLEIDLEISIO  

 
Atgoffodd yr Arweinydd y rheini a oedd yn bresennol bod y cyfarfod yn cael ei ffrydio’n fyw, ac 
y byddai recordiad ar gael i'w weld ar wefan y Cyngor, ac eithrio trafodaethau sy’n ymwneud ag 
eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig. Cliciwch Yma i Wylio. 

 

 
1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB  

 
 Ni dderbyniwyd unrhyw ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb. 
 
  
2. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT  
 

 Ni dderbyniwyd unrhyw ddatganiadau o fuddiant. 
 

Page 5

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 4

https://civico.net/caerphilly


  

 
3. CABINET FEL YMDDIRIEDOLWYR SEFYDLIAD Y GLOWYR, COED DUON, A 

GYNHALIWYD AR 15FED MEHEFIN 2022 

 
PENDERFYNWYD cymeradwyo cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 15fed Mehefin 
2022 fel cofnod cywir. 

 
4.       ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL A DATGANIAD O GYFRIFON SEFYDLIAD Y GLOWYR, COED 

DUON – Y FLWYDDYN SY’N DOD I BEN AR 31 MAWRTH 2022 

  
Rhoddwyd ystyriaeth i’r adroddiad lle cyflwynwyd yr Adroddiad Blynyddol a’r Datganiad o 
Gyfrifon am y flwyddyn sy’n yn dod i ben ar 31ain Mawrth 2022 i’r Cabinet fel Ymddiriedolwyr 
Sefydliad y Glowyr, Coed Duon. 
 
Mynegodd y Cabinet eu diolch i E. Tong, staff Sefydliad y Glowyr, Coed Duon, a'r cyhoedd am 
eu ffydd a’u cefnogaeth yn y lleoliad, a oedd wedi’i chael hi’n anodd ar ôl y pandemig, ond a 
oedd bellach yn gweld niferoedd ymwelwyr yn dychwelyd i lefelau cyn-COVID-19, ac yn achos 
tymor pantomeim 2022, y lefelau presenoldeb uchaf o unrhyw gynhyrchiad blaenorol. 
 
Nododd y Cabinet bryder a godwyd gan Archwilio Cymru mewn perthynas â’r datganiad o 
gyfrifon blynyddol ac fe’i cynghorwyd bod hyn yn ymwneud â’r ffordd y mae cyfrifon Sefydliad 
Glowyr, Coed Duon, yn cael eu cofnodi yn y Cyfriflyfr Cyffredinol a'u hargymhelliad y dylid 
cofnodi hwn fel cofnod ar wahân. Cadarnhaodd y Swyddog Adran 151, oherwydd pwysau o 
fewn y Gwasanaethau Ariannol, na fu’n bosibl cwblhau’r gwaith hwn yn ystod y flwyddyn 
ariannol hon, ond bod ymrwymiad wedi’i wneud i wneud hynny yn y flwyddyn ariannol nesaf. 
 
Diweddarwyd y Cabinet gan y Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Theatr a’r Celfyddydau ynglŷn â 
llwyddiannau’r flwyddyn ddiwethaf a thynnodd sylw at y cyd-gynhyrchiad o bwys ‘The Invisible 
Man’. Pwysleisiwyd pwysigrwydd cyd-gynyrchiadau fel hyn a manylwyd ar y cynlluniau ar gyfer 
tymor newydd y Gwanwyn.  
 
Rhoddwyd sicrwydd i’r Cabinet fod Sefydliad y Glowyr, Coed Duon, yn gweithio’n galed i 
weithredu mor effeithiol ac effeithlon â phosib, ac roedd hynny’n cynnwys symleiddio gwerthiant 
cynnyrch. 
 
Amlinellwyd gwaith Grŵp Ymgynghorol Sefydliad y Glowyr, Coed Duon, a nododd y Cabinet  
aelodaeth amrywiol y Grŵp a chyfraniad amhrisiadwy y gwirfoddolwyr hyn i Sefydliad y Glowyr, 
Coed Duon. 
 
Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth lawn, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhelliad a gynhwysir  
yn adroddiad y Swyddog yn cael ei gymeradwyo, a thrwy Microsoft Forms, cytunwyd ar hyn yn 
unfrydol.  
 
 

Oherwydd y rhesymau a gynhwysir yn adroddiad y Swyddog, PENDERFYNWYD y dylid 
ystyried, nodi a chymeradwyo Adroddiad Blynyddol a Datganiad o’r Cyfrifon a gyfrifwyd 
ar gyfer Sefydliad y Glowyr, Coed Duon, ym Mlwyddyn Ariannol 2021/22. 
 

 
Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 13:50. 

 

Cymeradwywyd a llofnodwyd fel cofnod cywir yn amodol ar unrhyw gywiriadau a wneir yn y 
cyfarfod nesaf. 

 
 

____________________ 
CADEIRYDD 

Page 6



 
Cabinet Forward Work Programme –14th February 2023 
 
Meeting date:      Report title:                                         Key issue:                                                                     Report author:                         Cabinet Member: 

22/02/2023 
13:00 

Budget Proposals for 2023/24 
and Updated Medium -Term 
Financial Plan (MTFP) 
 
 

Following the public Consultation, Cabinet  
to consider the outcome and endorse the  
2023/24 budget proposals prior to final  
determination by Council on the 23rd  
February 2023, and to note the updated  
MTFP. 
 

Stephen Harris Cllr. Eluned Stenner 

22/02/2023 
13:10 

Welsh Government Retail, 
Leisure and Hospitality Rate 
Relief Scheme 

To provide details of the new ‘Retail, Leisure 
and Hospitality Rate Relief Scheme’ offered by 
WG for 2023/24 which the Authority must 
formally adopt. 

John Carpenter Cllr. Eluned Stenner 

22/02/2023 
13:20 

Empty Property Grant Approval  For Cabinet to consider the new Welsh 
Government National Empty Property Grant 
Programme. 

Nick Taylor-Williams; 
Claire Davies 

Cllr. Shayne Cook 

22/02/2023 
13:30 

Formalising the Youth Service 
Model 

To seek Cabinet approval to formally adopt 
the blended youth work model that has 
successfully supported the youth service 
throughout the pandemic. 

Paul O’Neill 
 

Cllr. Carol Andrews 

08/03/2023 
13:00 

Biodiversity and Grass Cutting 
Regimes 

To seek Cabinet approval in relation to 
proposals to enhance and promote 
biodiversity in our grass cutting regimes across 
the county borough and following 
consultation with local members.  
 
 

Mike Headington Cllr. Chris Morgan 

08/03/2023 
13:10 

Empty Homes Strategy  To seek Cabinet approval of the proposed 
strategy. 
 

Claire Davies; Mark 
Jennings 

Cllr. Shayne Cook 

08/03/2023 
13:20 

Housing Revenue Account 
Business Plan 2022/23 

To seek Cabinet approval of the Housing  
Business Plan position in advance of  

Nick Taylor-Williams; 
Lesley Allen 

Cllr. Shayne Cook 

P
age 7 E

item
 A

r Y
r A

genda 5



 
Cabinet Forward Work Programme –14th February 2023 
 
Meeting date:      Report title:                                         Key issue:                                                                     Report author:                         Cabinet Member: 

submitting the plan to Welsh Government by  
31st March 2023. 

08/03/2023 
13:30 

Caerphilly Homes Task Group 
 

To agree that the Caerphilly Homes Task 
Group (CHTG) ceases as the Welsh Housing 
Quality Standard (WHQS) Programme has 
been completed. 
 

Nick Taylor-Williams  
 

Cllr. Shayne Cook 

08/03/2023 
13:40 

Private Finance Initiative (PFI) To receive and consider a report on a review  
of the council's Private Finance Initiative (PFI)  
contracts 

Stephen Harris Cllr. Eluned Stenner 

08/03/2023 
13:50 

Council Participation strategy 
2023-2027 

To seek approval of the revised participation 
strategy that captures the new requirements 
of the local government and elections act. 
 

Hayley Lancaster; Rob 
Tranter 

Cllr. Nigel George 
 

22/03/2023 
13:00 

Strategic Equality Plan Annual 
Report 2021-2022 
 

For Cabinet to consider and approve the 
Strategic Equality Plan Annual Report 2021-
2022 prior to publication on the Council's 
website. 
 

Kath Peters; Anwen 
Cullinane 
 

Cllr. Eluned Stenner 
 

22/03/2023 
13:30 

Gender Pay Gap  
 

To agree the Gender Pay Gap report which has 
to be published by 31st March 2023. 
 

Lynne Donovan  
 

Cllr. Nigel George 
 

05/04/2023 
13:00 

Draft Waste Strategy 
 

For Cabinet to agree the draft Waste Strategy Marcus Lloyd Cllr. Chris Morgan 

05/04/2023 
13:30 

A469 Troedrhiwfuwch To seek Cabinet approval on an 
implementation plan to undertake a 
significant highway repair to the A469 north. 

Mark S Williams; Marcus 
Lloyd 

Cllr. Julian Simmonds 

19/04/2023 
13:00 

Review of the Local Public 
Convenience Strategy 

To seek Cabinet approval for the Council’s 
updated Local Public Convenience Strategy 
following a review and public consultation. 
 

Rob Hartshorn Cllr. Philippa Leonard 

P
age 8



 
Cabinet Forward Work Programme –14th February 2023 
 
Meeting date:      Report title:                                         Key issue:                                                                     Report author:                         Cabinet Member: 

19/04/2023 
13:10 

Multi-functional Cadet and 
Sports Pavilion at Morgan Jones 
Park and Parc Penallta Visitor 
Centre 
 

To update Cabinet regarding the inability to 
progress previously approved proposals to 
build a multi-functional cadet / sports pavilion 
at Morgan Jones Park and a Visitor Centre at 
Parc Penallta and to seek Cabinet approval to 
implement alternative schemes at both 
locations and to release previously approved 
capital contributions back to the Authority’s 
capital reserves. 

Rob Hartshorn Cllr. Chris Morgan 

03/05/2023 
13:00 

No items currently scheduled 
 

   

17/05/2023 
13:00 

Waste Strategy 
 

For Cabinet to consider the outcome of the 
public Consultation and approve the final 
Waste Strategy. 

Marcus Lloyd; Hayley 
Jones 

Cllr. Chris Morgan 
 

31/05/2023 
13:00 

Workforce Development 
Strategy 2021-24 - 6 month 
update 

To provide Cabinet with a 6 month update 
with the progress against the Workforce 
Development Strategy. 

Lynne Donovan Cllr. Nigel George 

31/05/2023 
13:20 

Employee Wellbeing Strategy 
2021-24 - 6 monthly update 

To provide Cabinet with a 6 month update 
with the progress against the Employee 
Wellbeing Strategy. 

Lynne Donovan Cllr. Nigel George 

  14/06/2023 
            13:00 

No items currently scheduled    

  28/06/2023 
             13:00 

Local Housing Market 
Assessment and the Welsh 
Government Prospectus 
 

For Cabinet to discuss and approve the Local 
Housing Market Assessment and the Welsh 
Government Prospectus.  Welsh Government 
requires all Local Authorities to undertake a 
Local Housing Market Assessment and a 
Prospectus. The documents set out the 
requirement for housing within the county 
borough and is utilised to inform the LDP, the 
allocation of Social Housing Grant and the 

Nick Taylor-Williams; Jane 
Roberts-Waite 
 

Cllr. Shayne Cook 

P
age 9



 
Cabinet Forward Work Programme –14th February 2023 
 
Meeting date:      Report title:                                         Key issue:                                                                     Report author:                         Cabinet Member: 

Council’s own Caerphilly Homes development 
programme. 

28/06/2023 
             13:20 

Development and Governance 
Strategy 

The establishment of the development 
strategy which details the principles, practices 
and governance arrangements which are 
needed to facilitate, enable and support the 
new build objectives of Caerphilly Homes now 
and in the future.  It will tackle the challenges, 
the development process, development 
programme and strategic priorities. 

Nick Taylor-Williams; Jane 
Roberts-Waite 
 

Cllr. Shayne Cook 

12/07/2023 
13:00 

No items currently scheduled 
 

   

  26/07/2023  
             13:00 

Annual Corporate Safeguarding 
Report plus the Annual 
Safeguarding Management 
Information Report. 
 

To seek approval of the Annual Safeguarding 
reports. 

Gareth Jenkins 
 

Cllr. Elaine Forehead 
 

  26/07/2023 
            13:10 

Day Services  For Cabinet to consider and approve the new 
proposed Day Services Model. 

Jo Williams Cllr. Elaine Forehead 
 

 

P
age 10



 
 

 
 

 
CABINET – 22ND FEBRUARY 2023 

 
 

SUBJECT:  NATIONAL EMPTY HOME GRANT 
 
REPORT BY:  CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF SOCIAL SERVICES AND HOUSING  
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 

1.1 To inform members of the new Welsh Government National Empty Home Grant which 
is the successor of the Valley Task Force Empty Home Grant (VTF EHG).  Outlining 
the purpose, scale, and timing of the grant. 
 

1.2 To note the “in principle” support received from Corporate Management Team to 
participate in the grant programme launching in January 2023. 
 

1.3 To seek Cabinet approval of Caerphilly Homes participating in the fund and agree the 
Council’s financial contribution. 
 

1.4 To seek Cabinet approval of funding the Empty Property Team for an additional 2 years 
until October 2025   

 
 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 The Welsh Government (WG) are replacing the Valley Task Force (VTF) Empty 

Homes Grant (EHG) initiative with a similar national product. WG are committed to 
maximising the return to use of privately owned empty properties linked to their 
enforcement agenda, unmet housing need issues and more recently linking into the 
cost-of-living crisis, all of which are shared objectives of CCBC. 

 
2.2 The national scheme has received Ministerial approval and was launched in January 

2023. £50 million has been set aside for the programme over a 2 year period, with 
allocations of £25m in 23/24 and £25m in 24/25.  The product will be very similar to 
the VTF EHG, available to empty property owners who want to become owner-
occupiers.  

 
2.3 There will be an initial notational allocation to each local authority based on the 

Council’s, council tax data relating to the number of empty homes for the specific year. 
For CCBC in 22/23 this equates to 4.62%.  

 
2.4 Based on this 4.62%, during 23-25 the allocation to CCBC would be £2.31M.   If, as 

expected, there is demand from property owners, for the total allocation, the LA 
contribution towards these grants at 10% would be approximately £231,000, resulting 

Page 11

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 6



 
 

in total assistance of £2.54M.  Based on a £25,000 maximum grant this would bring 
back approximately 101 empty homes.   

 
2.5 Caerphilly Homes could contribute in full (approximately £231,000) towards this 

programme from the general fund housing capital reserves (slippage), taking the 
pressure off future general fund resources. 

 
 
3. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
3.1 That Cabinet consider the merits of the new National Empty Home Grant programme 

and the potential number of empty homes that could be brought back into use based 
on the maximum grant, across the county borough over the next two years (101) and 
agree that Caerphilly Homes participate in the new National Empty Home Grant 
programme.  

 
3.2 To agree the contribution of circa £231,000 towards the scheme during 23- 25 from 

housing general fund capital reserves. 
 
3.3       To approve the use of both General Fund and Private Sector Housing revenue balances 

of circa £274,000 to fund the Empty property Team for an additional 2 years until 
October 2025. 

 
 
4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 The Empty Property Team have engaged very proactively with the empty property 

owners within the private sector. Agreeing and approving the delivery of this 
programme and contributing towards the works required to each property to bring them 
back into use, is one tool at the disposal of Caerphilly Homes to increase the available 
housing stock within the borough. This relieves other pressures across the housing 
sector particularly in the private rented sector where other groups of the community in 
housing need can then be accommodated. 

 
4.2 Agreeing a CCBC contribution towards the programme enables the funding to go 

further and as the team works to promote the scheme their objective will be to optimise 
the funding envelope to increase the number of empty properties that can be brought 
back into use. 

 
 
5. THE REPORT 

  
5.1 In September 2020 Cabinet approved a capital allocation of up to £700k from Capital 

Earmarked Reserves to support the delivery of Valley Task Force (VTF) (based on an 
anticipated 35% contribution towards each grant), as well as the creation of a 2-year 
fixed term empty homes team at a staffing cost of £275k to deliver the work.  

 
5.2 The staff commenced work in October 2021 and therefore are currently funded until 

October 2023. Following the commencement of the VTF scheme in 2020, WG were 
able to fund an increased level of the grant work than was originally anticipated and 
therefore the local authority contribution was significantly reduced to a capital lump 
sum of £100k.  Consequently £600k was not required. 

 
5.3 The VTF programme in Caerphilly CB resulted in 65 properties receiving grant aid so 

that they could be returned to beneficial use, all of which are completed. This was 

Page 12



 
 

achieved at an approximate total cost of just under £1.5m of which £1m was provided 
by VTF grant assistance, £100K CCBC contribution and £300K applicant contribution 
(see paragraph 5.13 below). 

 
5.4 £50 million has been allocated by WG for the new National Empty Home Grant 

programme over a 2 year period, with allocations of £25m in 23/24 and £25m in 24/25. 
The product is available to empty home owners who want to become owner-occupiers. 
The required Local Authority contribution is 10% of its allocation.  

 
5.5 It is expected that there will be an initial notional allocation to each local authority based 

on the Council’s, council tax data relating to empty homes. For CCBC in 22/23 this 
equates to 4.62%. The amount of funding CCBC will receive will depend on the number 
of empty homes recorded in that particular financial year but based on the 4.62%, 
during 23 -25 the figure would be £2.31M. If, as expected, there is demand from 
property owners for the total allocation, based on the confirmed percentage 
contribution of 10% it would be approximately £231,000, resulting in total assistance 
of £2.54M.  Based on a £25,000 maximum grant this would bring back approximately 
101 empty homes.   

 
5.6 Caerphilly Homes could contribute in full (approximately £231,000) towards this 

programme during the 2 years from the general fund housing capital reserves 
(slippage), taking the pressure off future general fund resources. 

 
5.7 It is key for the delivery of this new National Grant that approval to participate in the 

scheme is obtained as quickly as possible.  
 
5.8  Therefore, approval is sought to participate in the scheme from its launch in January  

2023,  with a view to seek approval to earmark general fund housing capital reserves 
to be used during 2023-25.   

 
5.9 The successful implementation of the scheme in these years will be dependent on the 

continuation of funding for the Empty Homes Team who have, to date, been successful 
in delivering the VTF programme as well as progressing the Welsh Government 
approved CCBC Empty Property Action Plan including the ongoing development of an 
empty homes pack, empty property website, Empty Homes Strategy and the instigation 
of legal proceeding on individual property owners in relation to enforced sales. 

 
5.10 Therefore, approval is also sought to use both General Fund and Private Sector 

Housing balances of circa £274,000 to continue to fund the Empty property Team for 
an additional 2 years until October 2025 to ensure the Empty Home Grant programme 
is delivered. 

 
5.11 The main details of the grant are listed below: 
 

Qualifying Period for Empty Home 

This will be 12 months to align with the commitment to extend the PAM measure from 
6 months to 12 months and be more reflective of a true empty. 
 
Scheme administration –  

This will be national to ensure consistency and aid the tight delivery timescales of the 
Programme as well as considering local capacity issues. The scheme will be 
administered by Rhonda Cynon Taff County Borough Council. 
 
Scheme costs / administration fees   

To consider revenue impacts on Local Authorities. 

Page 13



 
 

 
Grant allocation mechanism / formula  

A hybrid of both nominal allocation and demand led allocation where the initial 
allocation is nominal per Local Authority to ensure fairness but with spend being 
monitored and recovered as well as redistributed if not effectively utilised.  

 
Grant limit 

Maximum grant of £25,000 to include energy efficiency requirements. 
 
Match Funding requirements –  

Local Authority / applicant contribution: 
Applicant contribution will remain the same as VTF at 15% of the cost of the works up 
to a maximum of £3,000, waived for cases of hardship. Any costs above the grant 
maximum would be met by the applicant. 
Local authority contribution as a percentage figure match funding (10% with a 
maximum of £25,000 per property.  
 
Criteria –  
For example, –  
Owner of a home that has been registered with council tax as an empty for a minimum 
of 12 months.  
Grant work must result in energy efficiency improvement. 
5 year post grant conditions applied . 

 
 
5.12. Conclusion   

 
5.13 That Caerphilly Homes participate fully in the scheme and optimise the level of funding 

available to maximise the number of empty homes brought back into use, coming from 
general fund housing capital reserves. 

 

6. ASSUMPTIONS 

6.1 The key assumption is that this work can be picked up within Caerphilly Homes 
primarily focusing on the empty property team. 

 
6.2 That all property will be at the maximum eligible grant and this manages expectations 

of the conditions over the next few years. 
 
 
7. SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

 
7.1       The Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) suggests that the delivery of the Empty Home 

Grant Programme will only have a positive impact upon the residents of the County 
Borough and on community cohesion by improving availability of affordable and market 
housing opportunities as well as helping to address problematic long-term empties.   

 
 
7.2     By providing opportunities for people to have more access to a wider range of housing 

options and providing financial support initiatives, the IIA shows that the Programme 
will have a positive impact on equality, diversity and inclusion, on tackling social 
disadvantage and on promoting the wellbeing of existing and future 
generations.  Helping people achieve affordable home ownership also contributes to 

Page 14



 
 

several of the Council’s wellbeing objectives.  No adverse impact on the promotion of 
the Welsh language was identified. 

 
7.3 Hyperlink to the WG Integrated Impact Assessment:  
  
 Link To Integrated Impact Assessment 
 
 
8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
8.1 The key financial implications are the Local Authority contribution towards the capital 

programme of £231,000 during 23/24 and 24/25 split 50/50.  This contribution can be 
made from general fund housing capital reserves.  

 
8.2      The use of both General Fund and Private Sector Housing revenue balances of circa 

£274,000 to fund the Empty property Team for an additional 2 years until October 
2025. 

 
 
9. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 

 
9.1 There are no implications here as it is assumed that the project will be managed by 

the existing Caerphilly Homes Empty Property Team. 
 
 
10. CONSULTATIONS 

 
10.1 All consultee responses have been included in this report. 
 
 
11. STATUTORY POWER  

 
11.1 Local Government Act 2000 and Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 

‘wellbeing power’. 
 
 
 
Author:  Nick Taylor-Williams, Head of Housing, Email: taylon1@caerphilly.gov.uk  
  Claire Davies, Private Sector Housing Manager, Email: daviec13@caerphilly.gov.uk 
 
Consultees: Cllr Shayne Cook  - Cabinet Member for Housing 

Cllr Andrew Whitcombe - Chair Housing and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee 
                       Cllr Patricia Cook - Vice Chair Housing and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee 

Christina Harrhy - Chief Executive 
Dave Street - Corporate Director Social Services and Housing 

                        Mark S Williams - Corporate Director Environment and Economy 
 Richard Edmunds - Corporate Director of Education and Corporate Services 
 Robert Tranter - Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer 
 Stephen R Harris - Head of Financial Services and S151 Officer 
 Rhian H Williams - Group Accountant Treasury and Capital 
 Lesley Allen - Principal Group Accountant - Housing 
 Fiona Wilkins - Housing Services Manager 
 Jane Roberts-Waite - Strategic Co-ordination Manager 
 Kerry Denman  - Housing Solutions Manager   
  

Page 15

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/caerphillydocs/iia/integrated-impact-assessment-for-national-empty-ho
mailto:taylon1@caerphilly.gov.uk


Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 16



 

 
 
 

CABINET – 22ND FEBRUARY 2023 
 
 

  
SUBJECT: FORMALISING THE YOUTH SERVICE MODEL 
 
REPORT BY:  CORPORATE DIRECTOR EDUCATION AND CORPORATE 
SERVICES 
 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 

1.1 To seek Cabinet approval to formalise the blended approach to youth work that has 
gained prominence and delivered success throughout and beyond the Covid-19 
pandemic. 

 
2. SUMMARY 

 
2.1 In 2019, the Youth Service presented proposals to the Education Scrutiny regarding a 

series of changes to the structure of its part time youth work section.  The proposals 
were based on the requirement for a more modern and fit for purpose means of 
delivery.   

 
2.2    The Covid pandemic that began in 2020 required the more immediate and ultimately 

very successful repositioning of youth work to meet the sudden changes of need by 
young people and communities to a much more flexible and responsive position. 

 
2.3 The scale of change was significant as lockdown required the closure of building-based 

youth work and saw the emergence of outreach and online versions of youth work 
provision during that period. 

 
2.4 Over the years that have followed, the service has only partially reintroduced building 

based youth work alongside the newer forms of delivery.   
 
2.5 As a consequence of this requirement to adapt, the former reliance on a youth clubs-

only format for the service’s part-time youth work section has now evolved into a more 
blended approach involving a variety of types of youth work engagement. 

 
2.6 With the success of this new blended model continuing to impact positively on the 

young people of Caerphilly, the service is looking for Cabinets approval to formalise 
this model of working and embed it as a core operating principle of service delivery. 

 
 

Page 17

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 7



3. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
3.1 That Cabinet: 
 

1) Agrees to formally adopt the new blended model of youth working set out within 
this report 
 

2) Delegates Authority to the Youth Service Manager to begin to progress 
discussions with staff and Trade Union partners in consultation with the Chief 
Education Officer and relevant Cabinet Member 

 
3) Delegates Authority to the Youth Service Manager in consultation with the Chief 

Education Officer and relevant Cabinet Member to progress meaningful 
consultation with the local community in respect of the needs for the service to 
retain the Youth Centre at Brooklands in Risca. 

 
 
4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
4.1 With a new and successful blended approach to youth work having been in operation 

for almost three years, support is sought to formalise these changes and embed 
them as a core operating principle of the Council’s approach to youth work. 

 
5. THE REPORT 

 
5.1 This report focuses on the part of the youth service that has been mostly represented 

by youth club-style provision, with clubs often located in ad hoc locations and available 
at times that are not necessarily appropriate to the needs of young people. The clubs 
have seen variable levels of uptake and attendance. While the part time youth work 
section aims to be universal in its reach (that is, openly accessible by any and all young 
people), a purely centre based approach open at certain times of the week does not 
readily facilitate this aim. 

 
5.2 The new model aims to deliver improved core youth work provision throughout the 

borough, based on the needs, demographics and geography of the area, whilst 
enhancing the professionalism of staff and better blending and balancing universal 
youth work with the more targeted elements of the service. This would include its 
NEETs (Not in Education, Employment or Training) work, for example, with the 
advantages of better team communications including the more efficient safeguarding 
of young people.  

   
5.3    The model is not new. In fact, the Covid period saw the loss of many youth club venue 

spaces (for example in community centres and schools). In many cases, these venues 
can now no longer offer rental space.  Most youth clubs were not located in fit for 
purpose venues (such as youth centres) but in hired premises that were not always 
‘young people friendly’. 

 
5.4    There had always been a degree of ‘post code lottery’ with this single format type of 

youth work provision, which supported some communities better than others while 
some could not be supported at all. The clubs also only operated between September 
and May.  

 
5.5    The modern habits of young people demand greater built-in service flexibility. In 

essence, a solely buildings-based, youth club-style approach to delivery is no longer 
relevant. Modern youth services need to reach out to young people wherever they 

Page 18



choose to be, year-round and through their application, other opportunities will emerge 
over time. Over the last three years, the Council has developed its new model through 
practice and the impact has been positive on many fronts. 

 
5.6 For example, during the pandemic period, the Crumlin Youth and Community Centre 

which was already seeing greatly diminished usage, was given up as an asset. This 
enabled the Council to accrue considerable future savings as well as avoid significant 
and ongoing maintenance liabilities. The release of the asset was carried out 
sensitively via meaningful consultation, which was multi-layered and inclusive of 
community members, elected members and with young people in the area, and would 
ultimately support the development of more flexible and widespread forms of Youth 
Work.  

 
5.7 In a similar vein, the service is now exploring a proposal to withdraw from the Risca 

Youth Centre which is in close proximity to another youth centre that young people in 
Risca attend. Withdrawing from this centre will separately provide the opportunity for 
the Council to develop specialist housing requirements on that site. Arrangements for 
the development of an improved youth work offer for the Risca area are already at an 
advanced stage of preparation. Any withdrawal from the Risca Youth Centre will, 
however, be subject to meaningful consultation with the local community and the 
development of more flexible and widespread forms of Youth Work. 

 
5.8 From a staffing perspective, the improved model will likely require the review of some 

youth worker contracts. Initial soundings have been undertaken with staff and, should 
Cabinet ultimately support the formalisation of the new model, staff will be formally 
engaged along with Human Resources and the Trade Unions.  

  
5.9 Conclusion   

 
 This report seeks to formalise a model that has been operating in practice over the last 

three years. During this time, the youth work offer has been adapted through 
circumstances that have largely been dictated by the pandemic but have, nonetheless, 
delivered significant benefits. The blended approach has seen the Council withdraw 
from some premises while refining and enhancing the offer to young people. Support 
to formalise the model is now sought. 

 
6. ASSUMPTIONS 

6.1 None.  
 
7. SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 

7.1 The proposals are consistent with the principals of the Wellbeing of Future Generations 
Act, the National Youth Work Strategy and WG’s Engagement and Progression 
Framework guidance and locally with the new Agile/flexible working policies and 
CCBC’s Education Strategy. 

 
7.2 Any Cabinet decisions that emerge as a result of the recommendations set out within 

this report will be subject to an IIA where necessary.  
 
8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 Any financial implications associated with the formalisation of the new model will be 

managed from within the existing service budgets. 

Page 19



 
9. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 

 
9.1 The new model will provide opportunities for the career development of employees 

and an eventual increase in the retention of skilled practitioners.  Any changes required 
to the service resulting from the new model will be in accordance with HR policies and 
procedures and in consultation with staff and Trade Unions.   

 
 
10. CONSULTATIONS 

 
10.1 This report was considered by the Education Scrutiny Committee on the 14th 

February 2023. The comments received are summarised below: 
 

Comments on Formalising the Youth Service Model 

 
Members noted that the report states that the proposed changes to the youth service 
model seeks to put in place the changes adopted during the Covid pandemic, 
however members suggested that some of these were already happening before 
Covid and were perhaps a sign of the times. 

 
The scrutiny committee were advised that different models were experimented with 
before Covid and included online and outreach work, with a survey was carried out.  
 
This showed it was easier to reach more young people and provided assurance that 
young people want a broader range of services which are not necessarily building 
based. Young people are more sophisticated and require a broader means of 
engaging with youth workers. They want a service that is responsive to their needs 
with more flexibility, that is offered throughout the year and takes into account the 
time of year.  

 
Members suggested that a place that is already established in a community can be 
an advantage because people know where to go and asked what would be the 
disadvantage of moving towards this model and asked specifically what percentage 
is online. 

 
The scrutiny committee were advised that this model is a blended approach, there 
will be three youth centres and people can be transported to one of the three youth 
centres if they wish and access good centres with good facilities. The model will be 
responsive to needs and adjust to the time of year, during the good weather people 
may choose to be outdoors for example.  
 
The online offer uses a wide variety of social media platforms, and for some young 
people they are more comfortable interacting this way. The old model of only 
providing youth clubs excludes those people not comfortable with attending a club 
and interacting in that way. Members were assured that this model has come from 
consultation with young people, and they have said what they want and need.  

 
Members commented on the work done by voluntary groups in some areas and 
understand the benefits of having a building but also recognised that many young 
people prefer different offers, preferring a non-traditional approach. There is a need 
to engage with hard to reach groups and outreach may be a way to help make 
contact with them. The scrutiny committee asked how much money has been 
released by transferring to this model, with the selling off buildings no longer needed. 
What is the percentage of outreach, and what re-training of staff has been required to 

Page 20



develop the skills for outreach and what percentage of staff have Welsh bilingual 
language skills.  

 
Members were advised that they will still need to meet the MTFP requirements but 
other than that the savings will be used to provide resources for young people. For 
example a cost benefit analysis of the Crumlin building has been carried out and it 
was estimated that £500k would be needed to maintain the building for the next five 
years and the preference was to invest that money into other things. In terms of 
outreach this was a large part of the consultation with young people and also 
consultation with Partners such as the Police. The feedback challenged the service 
we were providing and we were told that we need to make the youth work available 
to young people wherever they are and available all year and not just provide it in a 
youth club during certain months.  

 
The scrutiny committee were assured that they have invested in substantial training 
of staff, not just during lockdown, to make sure staff are comfortable working in a 
blended environment. Staff can now work well in a building but also in parks, street 
corners etc. We have managed to develop staff skills and offer them a new way to 
work with young people. There are staff who have 20+ year of experience and love 
the changes because they are working with young people they haven’t met before. 
They are aware outreach work needs support and the rules of engagement are 
different but there was a growing demand from young people and staff. There are 
opportunities to work with the youth homelessness team and also support mental 
health and well-being issues in young people, so moving away from a general 
education service.  

 
Members were advised that in terms of the bi-lingual service they have carried out a 
workforce exercise to try and find out who can speak Welsh and by asking the 
question in a different way we have 15% of staff who identified they can speak 
Welsh. Historically people may not have answered that they speak Welsh because 
they were concerned that they may be asked to carry out translation work. There is a 
Welsh Language youth facility and have secured Welsh Government funding to 
expand the Welsh Language Youth offer. An example of joint work with SYDIC at 
Virginia Park was provided where this work has been developed to ensure it is 
relevant for young people. 

 
The scrutiny committee sought assurance that the engagement was sufficient to fully 
comprehend and demonstrate service users views. Members were assured and it 
was highlighted that during the recent Youth Forum Cabinet elections there were a 
number of people who stood who had never been reached before. During Covid 
young people presented their thoughts and they have carried out a long process of 
formal consultation. The aim is to have steering groups for each cluster area with 
young people sitting on it and advise the youth service in that area. 

 
Members were assured by the Chair of the Youth Forum that the blended approach 
is great as it gives young people who wouldn’t otherwise become involved 
opportunities that suit them.  

 
Members asked how the service deals with challenges from parents around their 
children in contact with particular children for example. The scrutiny committee were 
advised that parental engagement is a big factor in making changes with partners 
organisations. They have reconfigured the staffing so there are people available to 
carry out engagement with families on a permanent basis. The aim is to deal with any 
local issues through contact and discussion and seek a resolution.  

Page 21



The scrutiny committee asked how staff engage with young people in the blended 
model and outreach. Members were advised that there are a set of protocols for 
outreach work with staff working in pairs. They will carry out reconnaissance and 
explore an area, get to know the young people, the location and the area. The staff 
will speak to local shopkeepers, and key community people. Then they will use their 
youth skills to build those relationships look at the issues and provide a response 
which could be a project such as an educational visit. This type of work can lead to 
better local relationships, less school disengagement etc. This work can also lead to 
further engagement with colleges, training courses. 

 
The Chair thanked everyone for their contributions and particularly thanked Lottie 
Davies the Chair of the Youth Forum for attending and Paul O’Neill Senior Youth 
Service Manager for his responses. 

 
It was moved and seconded that the recommendations be approved.  By way of 
Microsoft Forms and verbal confirmation this was unanimously agreed. 
 

 
Author:        Paul O’Neill, Senior Youth Service Manager, Ty Penallta  
 
Consultees: Christina Harrhy, Chief Executive,  
 Richard Edmunds Corporate Director of Education and Corporate 

Services  
 Stephen Harris, Head of Financial Services and S151 Officer 
 Lynne Donovan, Head of People Services 
 Robert Tranter, Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer 
 Education Senior Management team 
 Cllr Carol Andrews, Cabinet Member for Education  
 Cllr Teresa Parry, Chair of the Education Scrutiny Committee 
 Cllr Jo Rao, Vice Chair of Education Scrutiny Committee 
 Education Scrutiny Committee Members 
 

Page 22



 
 
 

CABINET– 22ND FEBRUARY 2023 
 

SUBJECT: WELSH GOVERNMENT RETAIL, LEISURE AND HOSPITALITY 
RATE RELIEF SCHEME 2023/2024 

 
REPORT BY:  CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION AND CORPORATE 
   SERVICES 
 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 The Welsh Government (WG) has announced a new temporary business rate relief 

scheme, the ‘Retail, Leisure and Hospitality Rate Relief Scheme’ for the financial 
year 2023/24 only. 

 
1.2 Relief granted by the Authority under this new scheme is to be reimbursed by WG by 

way of a specific cash-limited grant but, before any relief is awarded, the Authority 
must consider and adopt the new scheme. 

 
1.3 This report recommends that the Council endorses the new relief scheme in 

accordance with the WG guidance set out on the WG website: Non-Domestic Rates 
– Retail, Leisure and Hospitality Rates Relief in Wales – 2023-24 | Business 
Wales (gov.wales). 

 
 

2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 The report provides details of the new ‘Retail, Leisure and Hospitality Rate Relief 

Scheme’ offered by WG for 2023/24 only. 
 
2.2 Adoption of the new scheme as set out on the WG website is obligatory because WG 

has prescribed the details for the scheme.  The Authority must formally adopt the 
new scheme set out in the WG guidance on the WG website to obtain the WG grant 
funding. 

                    
3. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
3.1 Cabinet is asked to: 
 
3.1.1 Endorse the ‘Retail, Leisure and Hospitality Rate Relief Scheme 2023-24’ (the 

2023/24 Scheme), in accordance with the WG guidance on the WG website and the 
provisions of section 47(1) (a) and section 47(3) of the Local Government Finance 
Act 1988. 

 

Page 23

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 8

https://businesswales.gov.wales/non-domestic-rates-retail-leisure-and-hospitality-rates-relief-wales-2023-24
https://businesswales.gov.wales/non-domestic-rates-retail-leisure-and-hospitality-rates-relief-wales-2023-24
https://businesswales.gov.wales/non-domestic-rates-retail-leisure-and-hospitality-rates-relief-wales-2023-24


3.1.2 Note that the Head of Financial Services & S151 Officer will use delegated powers to 
award the relief. 

 
3.1.3 Support the proposal set out in paragraph 5.8 that in order to assist ratepayers and 

minimise administration costs for the Authority, it is proposed that the declaration 
process will involve each eligible business completing and submitting an online form 
via the Council’s website, with the Council’s Business Rates Team aiming to process 
all declaration forms received as quickly as possible and issue amended bills to 
eligible ratepayers in accordance with the WG guidance. 

 
3.1.4 Note that Officers of the Authority will make the business community aware of the 

2023/24 Scheme through its usual channels, including its website and social media.   
 
 
4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
4.1 To ensure that the Authority complies with the grant conditions to obtain and fully 

utilise the grant funding in respect of any rate relief awarded under the WG Scheme 
as detailed in the guidance set out on the WG website. 

 
 
5. THE REPORT 
 

5.1 WG has announced the ‘Retail, Leisure and Hospitality Rate Relief Scheme 2023/24’ 
(the 2023/24 Scheme).  It is intended that the relief under the 2023/24 Scheme will 
be made available subject to the Authority adopting the new Scheme as set out in the 
guidance on the WG website and accepting the grant offer. 

 
5.2 WG has made a guidance document available on its website (refer to the link in 

paragraph 1.3), which in effect prescribes the detailed criteria and conditions for the 
2023/24 Scheme.  The 2023/24 Scheme is aimed at businesses in Wales in the 
retail, leisure and hospitality sectors, for example shops, pubs and restaurants, gyms, 
performance venues and hotels. 

 
5.3 The 2023/24 Scheme aims to provide support for eligible occupied properties by 

offering a discount of 75% on non-domestic rate bills for such properties. The 
scheme will apply to all eligible businesses; however, the relief will be subject to a 
cap in the amount each business can claim across Wales. The total amount of relief 
available is £110,000 across all properties occupied by the same business.  As with 
the 2022/23 scheme, all businesses are required to make a declaration that the 
amount of relief they are seeking across Wales does not exceed this cap, when 
applying to individual local authorities.  To do this, business rate payers will have to 
complete and submit an online declaration form that will be made available on the 
Council’s website in early March 2023, along with a link to the Welsh Government’s 
guidance document. 

 
5.4 The relief will be provided as a subsidy by way of Minimal Financial Assistance 

(MFA). The same business must not claim more than £315,000 in total of MFA over 
three years (including 2023-24). Previous iterations of the Retail, Leisure and 
Hospitality Rate Relief Scheme in Wales were not provided as a subsidy and should 
not be counted towards the MFA limit. The gross value of relief claimed by the same 
business must, therefore, not exceed £110,000 in Wales for 2023-24 (to comply with 
the terms of this scheme) or £315,000 from 2021-22 to 2023-24 inclusive (to comply 
with subsidy control requirements). Businesses claiming the relief must declare that 

Page 24



the amount being claimed does not exceed those limits before the relief can be 
awarded. 

 
5.5 Due to the need for the Authority to formally adopt the 2023/24 Scheme, and the 

relatively short time period between this process concluding and the 2023/24 annual 
billing processes commencing in March 2023, the new financial year rate bills will be 
issued before any rate relief can be awarded under the Scheme.  However, the 
Business Rate Team will aim to process all declaration forms received as quickly as 
possible so that businesses receive amended rate bills as a matter of urgency. 

 
5.6 As this is a temporary measure for 2023/24 only, WG will provide the relief by 

reimbursing local authorities that use their discretionary relief powers under section 
47 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988.  It will be for individual local 
authorities to adopt a scheme and decide in each individual case when to grant relief 
under section 47. 

 
5.7 WG will reimburse local authorities for the relief that is provided in line with the WG 

guidance via a grant under section 31 of the Local Government Act 2003 and section 
58A of the Government of Wales Act 2006.  Officers estimate that the full cost of the 
scheme could be around £3m but this is subject to change as the eligibility of 
premises used by some businesses will alter throughout the lifetime of the Scheme. 

 
5.8 In order to qualify for this rate relief, the guidance states that it will be for local 

authorities to determine how they wish to administer the scheme.  To assist 
ratepayers and minimise administration costs for the Authority, it is proposed that the 
declaration process will involve each eligible business completing and submitting an 
online form via the Council’s website.  As explained in paragraph 5.5, the Council’s 
Business Rate Team will aim to process all declaration forms received as quickly as 
possible and issue amended bills to eligible ratepayers in accordance with the WG 
guidance.        

 
5.9 Due to business rate payers having to declare via an online application form they 

meet the criteria for the 2023/24 Scheme, officers will make the business community 
aware of the Scheme through its usual channels, including its website and social 
media. 

 
5.10 Full details of the Scheme, including the qualifying criteria, are included in the 

guidance set out on the WG website: Non-Domestic Rates – Retail, Leisure and 
Hospitality Rates Relief in Wales – 2023-24 | Business Wales (gov.wales). 

 
 
 Conclusion   

5.11 The report provides details of a new rate relief scheme offered by WG, details of 
which are contained on the WG website; refer to link in paragraph 5.10.  Adoption of 
the new scheme is obligatory because WG has prescribed the details for the 
scheme. 

 
5.12 The Authority must formally adopt the new scheme as detailed on the WG website to 

obtain the WG grant funding. In order to implement the new scheme, Cabinet is 
asked to endorse the recommendations set out in paragraphs 3.1.1 to 3.1.4 of this 
report. 
 
 

Page 25

https://businesswales.gov.wales/non-domestic-rates-retail-leisure-and-hospitality-rates-relief-wales-2023-24
https://businesswales.gov.wales/non-domestic-rates-retail-leisure-and-hospitality-rates-relief-wales-2023-24


6. ASSUMPTIONS 

6.1 It is assumed that the recommendations in the report will maximise the use of the 
grant funding in terms of the amount of rate relief awarded, whilst minimising the 
staff/administrative costs incurred in awarding the rate relief. 
 

7. SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 

7.1 An Integrated Impact Assessment has not been completed because the rate relief 
available under the Scheme will be awarded based on WG’s terms and conditions 
which the Authority is administering behalf of WG. 

 
This report sets out an overview of the Scheme.  Full details of the Scheme, including 
the qualifying criteria, are included in the guidance set out on the WG website.  
Awarding this rate relief for the financial year 2023/24 will positively benefit those 
ratepayers who will receive it by reducing the amount of business rates they would 
otherwise have to pay.  Awarding rate relief reduces business rate bills which lowers 
the running costs of premises and in turn may enable businesses to maintain or 
enhance employment opportunities.  Not progressing with the proposal could have 
the reverse negative impact as those ratepayers would not benefit from a reduction in 
business rates payable. 

 
 
8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
8.1 There are no direct financial implications as the Authority will be reimbursed by WG 

for any relief granted, provided it can evidence that the expenditure falls within the 
terms of the ‘Retail, Leisure and Hospitality Rate Relief 2023/24’ grant offer. 

 
8.2 Officers estimate that the full cost of the scheme could be around £3m but this is 

subject to change as the eligibility of premises used by some businesses will alter 
throughout the lifetime of the Scheme. 

 
 
9. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 There will be some staff resource implications but longer-term capacity issues are 

being considered by the Head of Financial Services & Section 151 Officer.      
 
 
10. CONSULTATIONS 

 
10.1 There are no consultation responses that have not been reflected in this report. 
 
 
11. STATUTORY POWER 

 
11.1 Local Government Finance Act 1988, Government of Wales Act 2006, and Local 

Government Act 1972, 2000 and 2003.  The decision as to whether to adopt the WG 
‘Retail, Leisure and Hospitality Rate Relief Scheme 2023/24’ may be taken by 
Cabinet.  The Head of Financial Services & S151 Officer will use delegated powers 
to award the relief. 

 
 

Page 26



Author: John Carpenter, Finance Manager (Revenues) 
(Email: carpewj@caerphilly.gov.uk)   
 

 
Consultees: Christina Harrhy, Chief Executive 

(Email: harrhc@caerphilly.gov.uk) 
 
Richard Edmunds, Corporate Director for Education and Corporate Services 

 (Email: edmunre@caerphilly.gov.uk) 
 
 Robert Tranter, Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer 
 (Email: trantrj@caerphilly.gov.uk) 

 
  Stephen Harris, Head of Financial Services and S151 Officer, 
  (Email: harrisr@caerphilly.gov.uk) 

 
Cllr Eluned Stenner, Cabinet Member for Finance and Performance 
(Email: stenne@caerphilly.gov.uk) 

  
 Cllr Gary Johnston, Chair, Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee 

(Email: garyjohnston@caerphilly.gov.uk) 
 
Cllr Brenda Miles, Vice Chair, Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee 
(Email: brendamiles@caerphilly.gov.uk) 

  
 
Appendices:  None 
 

Page 27

mailto:carpewj@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:harrhc@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:edmunre@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:stenne@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:brendamiles@caerphilly.gov.uk


Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 28



 

  
 

 
 

 

  CABINET – 22ND FEBRUARY 2023 
 

SUBJECT: BUDGET PROPOSALS FOR 2023/24 
 

REPORT BY: CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To seek Cabinet endorsement of the 2023/24 budget proposals contained within this report prior 

to final determination by Council on 23 February 2023. 
 
 
2. SUMMARY 

 
2.1 At its meeting on 18 January 2023, Cabinet endorsed the 2023/24 Draft Budget Proposals 

based on the Welsh Government (WG) Provisional Local Government Financial Settlement for 
2023/24.  

 
2.2 The report provided details of a range of cost and service pressures that require funding, 

proposed permanent and temporary savings, the proposed one-off use of reserves, and a 
proposed increase of 7.9% in Council Tax to enable the Authority to set a balanced budget for 
the 2023/24 financial year. 

 
2.3 Following a period of consultation this report now presents Final Budget Proposals for the 

2023/24 financial year. The report also contains additional information for Cabinet consideration 
in respect of movements on the General Fund, and the proposed Capital Programme for the 
three-year period 2023/24 to 2025/26.  

 
2.4 An updated indicative Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFP) is also appended to the report 

showing a potential savings requirement of £48.335m for the two-year period 2023/24 to 
2024/25. 

 
 
3.  RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
3.1 Prior to consideration and determination at the Council meeting on 23 February 2023, Cabinet 

is asked: - 
 
3.1.1 To endorse the revenue budget proposals for 2022/23 of £438.722m as detailed 

throughout the report and summarised in Appendix 1. 
 
3.1.2 To endorse the proposed budget virements in relation to Additional Learning Needs as 

detailed in paragraph 5.3.12. 
 
3.1.3 To endorse the proposed use of £346k of the LMS Contingency Reserve as a one-off 

Page 29

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 9



 

sum to support the Education & Lifelong Learning Directorate’s 2023/24 contribution to 
the 50% repairs and maintenance budget for schools (as detailed in paragraph 5.5.3). 

 
3.1.4 To note the movements on the General Fund in Appendix 5 and the current projected 

balance as at 31 March 2023 of £13.041m.  
 
3.1.5 To endorse the proposed Capital Programme for the period 2023/24 to 2025/26 as set 

out in Appendix 6.  
. 
3.1.6 To support the proposal to increase Council Tax by 7.9% for the 2023/24 financial year 

to ensure that a balanced budget is achieved (Council Tax Band D being set at 
£1,353.01). 

 
3.1.7 To note the updated MTFP in Appendix 7 showing an indicative potential savings 

requirement of £48.335m for the two-year period 2024/25 to 2025/26. 
 
 
4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
4.1 Council is required annually to approve proposals to set a balanced budget and agree a Council 

Tax rate. 
 
4.2 Council is required to put in place a sound and prudent financial framework to support service 

delivery. 
 
 
5. THE REPORT 
 
5.1 Background and Economic Context 

 
5.1.1 The ongoing impact on the UK from the war in Ukraine, together with higher inflation, higher 

interest rates, uncertain government policy, and a deteriorating economic outlook, are major 
influences in determining the 2023/24 Budget Proposals and the medium-term financial outlook. 

 
5.1.2 The Bank of England (BoE) increased the Bank Rate by a further 0.5% to 4% in February 2023. 

This followed a rise of 0.75% in November 2022 which was the largest single rate hike since 
1989, and a rise of 0.5% in December 2022. 

 
5.1.3 The November 2022 quarterly Monetary Policy Report (MPR) forecast a prolonged but shallow 

recession in the UK with Consumer Prices Index (CPI) inflation remaining elevated at over 10% 
in the near-term. While the projected peak of inflation is lower than in the August report, due in 
part to the government’s support package for household energy costs, inflation is expected to 
remain higher for longer over the forecast horizon and the economic outlook remains weak, with 
unemployment projected to start rising. 

 
5.1.4 The UK economy contracted by 0.3% between July and September 2022 according to the Office 

for National Statistics, and Gross Domestic Product (GDP) for quarter 4 of 2022 was 0%, thus 
narrowly avoiding a recession. Growth is expected to fall throughout 2023 and the first half of 
2024. 

 
5.1.5 CPI inflation for January 2023 was 10.1%, but this is now expected to fall sharply to 1.4% in two 

years’ time and to 0% in three years’ time. This assumes that the Bank Rate follows the path 
implied by financial markets at the time of the November 2022 MPR (i.e. a peak of 5.25%). 
However, the BoE has stated that it considers this path to be too high, suggesting that the peak 
in interest rates will be lower, reducing the risk of inflation falling too far below target. Market 
rates have fallen since the time of the November MPR. 

 

Page 30



 

5.1.6 The current economic situation means that the Council (along with all others) is faced with 
unprecedented financial challenges. Due to austerity, between 2008/09 and 2021/22 the 
Council has already delivered savings of £106m to address reductions in funding and 
inescapable cost pressures. However, the details set out in this report show a savings 
requirement of £27.179m for 2023/24 alone, and due to the temporary nature of many of the 
measures proposed to balance the budget for 2023/24, it is currently anticipated that total 
permanent savings of £48.335m will be required for the two-year period 2024/25 to 2025/26. 

 
5.1.7 The scale of the challenge facing the Council cannot be underestimated. Clearly, a financial 

strategy that seeks to continuously salami slice our services and deplete our reserves is not a 
sustainable or an appropriate approach, especially when the demands upon our services are 
far higher than ever, as our communities continue to present far greater and increasingly 
complex needs to us. To ensure we are able to meet the needs of our communities, whilst 
operating with reduced funding, a whole Council and a whole county borough holistic approach 
is needed, and it is inevitable that some difficult decisions will need to be made at pace.      

  
5.2 Welsh Government (WG) Provisional Local Government Financial Settlement for 2023/24 

 
5.2.1 The Local Government Financial Settlement received from WG on an annual basis is referred 

to as Aggregate External Finance (AEF). This consists of a Revenue Support Grant (RSG) and 
Redistributed Non-Domestic Rates (business rates). Details of the Provisional Local 
Government Financial Settlement are usually announced by WG in early October each year. 
However, in recent years due to economic uncertainty the announcement has been delayed 
until December and details of the Provisional Local Government Financial Settlement for 
2023/24 were not released until 14 December 2022. 

 
5.2.2 On an All-Wales basis there is an increase in Aggregate External Finance (AEF) of £403m 

or 7.9% on a like-for-like basis. Table 1 below shows the range around the average of 7.9% 

driven by the funding formula. This is largely a reflection of data movements in pupil 
numbers and free school meal entitlement derived from the schools’ census, as well as the 

impact of the decennial Census on the population counts/estimates. The lowest increase is 

Blaenau Gwent with 6.5% and the highest is Monmouthshire with an increase of 9.3%.  
 

Table 1 - Changes to AEF by Local Authority (2022/23 to 2023/24)  
 

 
 

Page 31



 

5.2.3 Overall core revenue funding rises to £5.5bn for 2023/24. For planning purposes an 

indicative figure of £5.7bn has been provided for 2024/25 which equates to an uplift of 
£169m (3.1%). This figure is dependent on current estimates of NDR income but the 

forward indication is helpful.  
 

5.2.4 There is a small transfer in of resource for the coastal protection programme that affects 

Gwynedd, Conwy, and Swansea, otherwise there are no significant transfers into or out of 
the Settlement.  

 

5.2.5 In terms of public sector pay, the Minister for Finance & Local Government is cognisant of 
the pay pressures in the future and makes specific reference to pay for social care workers 

and teachers: - 
 

 “In making decisions about the level of funding for Local Government I have responded to 

the need to support key front-line services. In particular I have included funding to enable 
Authorities to continue to meet the additional costs of introducing the Real Living Wage for 

care workers.  

  
 As a result of spending decisions made in relation to education in England, Wales received 

a consequential of £117m a year in the Autumn Statement. This is being provided in full to 

Local Government through a combination of the Settlement and the Education MEG. The 
funding provided through this Settlement will therefore need to cover the costs arising from 

the 2023/24 pay deal which fall within the 2023/24 Settlement year. I have again taken the 
decision to provide all the available funding up front and not hold back funding for in-year 

recognition of the 2023/24 teachers’ pay deal. Authorities’ budget planning must therefore 

accommodate these costs.”  
 
5.2.6 In cash terms, the 6.9% increase for Caerphilly CBC provides additional funding of £22.152m 

for 2023/24. Whist this is of course welcomed, the increase is well below the current 
unprecedented levels of inflation and the Council faces cost pressures totalling £55.478m for 
2023/24 alone. 

 
5.2.7 Changes to other pass-ported grants in the Provisional Settlement result in a net reduction of 

£202k for Caerphilly CBC in relation to the tapering of WG funding for Private Finance Initiative 
(PFI) Schemes. 

 
5.2.8 The capital allocations available to Caerphilly CBC in the RSG and from the General Capital 

Grant have increased by £1.615m from the 2022/23 financial year.  
 
5.2.9 Details of the 2023/24 Final Local Government Financial Settlement will not be announced until 

early March 2023, however it is anticipated that this will not vary significantly from the position 
set out in the Provisional Settlement. 

 
5.3 2023/24 Budget Proposals 

 
5.3.1 Further to Cabinet endorsement of the 2023/24 Draft Budget Proposals on 18 January 2023, 

there have been further emerging costs pressures that require consideration in terms of funding. 
These are listed in Table 2 along with proposed adjustments to some of the initial savings 
proposals in response to the feedback from the consultation process on the Draft Budget 
Proposals.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 32



 

 Table 2 - Proposed Adjustments to the 2023/24 Draft Budget Proposals 
 

Description £m 
Additional Growth Requirements: -  

• Confirmed 21.88% increase in the Coroner’s Levy (originally assumed 
to be 10.7%) 

0.037 

• Regrading of 3 posts to support the delivery of the emerging Waste 
Strategy 

0.034 

• Additional staffing capacity in Electoral Services to deliver new regional 
responsibilities and voter ID requirements 

0.051 

• Additional staffing capacity to deal with the rollout of a new contract 
management approach across the Council 

0.230 

• Migration of OLAS General Ledger system to Cloud platform 0.087 
  
Adjustments to Proposed Savings: -  

• Initial £10k proposed saving for the withdrawal of the subsidy at 
Markham Community Leisure Centre to now be tapered over a three-
year period from April 2023 

0.007 

• Proposed 20% increase in fees for Sports pitches to be reduced to 12% 0.011 

• Proposed reduction of 5.5 hours in funding for caretaker costs in 
Community Centres to be changed to a reduction of 4 hours and 
tapered over a three-year period from October 2023  

0.053 

• Community Empowerment Fund budget to be reduced to £250k instead 
of being withdrawn completely  

0.250 

• Proposed 10% saving for SENCOM to be postponed pending 
discussions on an agreed regional approach from 2024/25 

0.078 

Total: - 0.838 
  
Funded By: -  

• Adjustment to energy cost pressure based on latest Crown Commercial 
Services (CCS) projections 

(0.544) 

• Additional one-off call on reserves (0.294) 

  

Net: - 0.000 

 
5.3.2 The proposals contained within this report (including the adjustments in Table 2 above) will 

deliver a balanced budget for 2023/24 on the basis that Council Tax is increased by 7.9%. Table 
3 provides a summary: -  

 
Table 3 – 2023/24 Budget Proposals Summary 
 

Description £m 
Cost Pressures: -  

• General Fund Services inflationary pressures (pay and non-pay) 24.381 

• General Fund inescapable service pressures 18.542 
• Schools cost pressures 12.555 

Total: -  55.478 

  
Funded By: -  

• 6.9% uplift in Provisional Settlement 22.152 

• Permanent savings proposals 4.972 
• Temporary savings proposals 6.862 

• One-off use of reserves 15.345 
• 7.9% proposed increase in Council Tax 6.147 

Total: - 55.478 

 

Page 33



 

5.3.3 Whilst the proposals in this report present a balanced financial position for 2023/24, a significant 
element of this is being achieved through one-off temporary measures i.e. £6.862m of 
temporary savings and £15.345m through the use of reserves. These temporary one-off 
measures totalling £22.207m will only support the budget for 2023/24 and they provide some 
breathing space to identify, agree and implement permanent savings for the 2024/25 financial 
year. This will be a significant challenge for the Council, and it is vital that an early start is made 
to identify proposals to address the financial shortfall.  

  
5.3.4 The 2023/24 General Fund Services inflationary cost pressures totalling £24.381m are set out 

in Table 4 below: - 
 

Table 4 – General Fund Services Inflationary Cost Pressures 
 

 £m 

National Joint Council (NJC) Pay Award 10.588 
Increase in Employer Pension Contributions (NJC Staff) 1.106 

Foundation Living Wage 0.218 
Non-Pay Inflation 13.262 

Non-Pay Inflation (Fees and Charges)   (0.793) 
TOTAL: - 24.381 

 
5.3.5 National Joint Council (NJC) Pay Award – The 2022/23 budget approved by Council in 

February 2022 assumed a NJC pay award of 3% from April 2022. However, the final approved 
pay award was an uplift of £1,925 across all pay scales which required additional funding of 
£4.788m to be identified. This has been funded in 2022/23 by a one-off contribution from surplus 
General Fund balances, and the additional cost has also now been factored into the base 
budget for 2023/24. In addition to this a further pay award of 5% is assumed from April 2023. 
Any increase above the assumed level of 5% for 2023/24 will need to be funded in-year from 
reserves, with the recurring impact then being factored into the budget from 2024/25 onwards.  

 
5.3.6 Increase in Employer Pension Contributions (NJC Staff) – The Greater Gwent (Torfaen) 

Pension Fund is subject to an independent triennial valuation of its assets and liabilities. The 
draft results of the 2022 valuation require a 1% increase in the employer’s contribution for 
2023/24. Further increases of 1% and 0.5% are also required for 2024/25 and 2025/26 
respectively.  

 
5.3.7 Foundation Living Wage – £218k is included in the 2023/24 Budget Proposals to allow for an 

increase in the Foundation Living Wage hourly rate for General Fund Services staff. 
 
5.3.8 Non-Pay Inflation – Inflation is at its highest level in 40 years with the Consumer Prices Index 

(CPI) inflation rate peaking at 11.1% during 2022. The most recent published data for the 12 
months to January 2023 showed CPI at 10.1%. Much of this increase is being driven by the 
significant increases in the cost of energy, fuel, and food and drink. Forward purchasing 
arrangements for energy have largely protected the Council from the impact of energy price 
increases in the current year but increases of circa 210% for gas and 131% for electricity are 
currently anticipated for 2023/24, equating to an additional cost of circa £4.5m for the General 
Fund. Increases of 22.2% for fuel, 16.5% for food and drink and 5% for all other categories of 
expenditure have also been factored into the 2023/24 Budget Proposals.  

 
5.3.9 Non-Pay Inflation (Fees and Charges) - A generic increase of 5% is assumed for Fees 

 and Charges.  
 
5.3.10 Table 5 provides a summary of the 2023/24 General Fund Services inescapable service 

pressures totalling £18.542m. These pressures have been subject to a detailed review and have 
been incorporated into the 2023/24 Budget Proposals on the basis that they are essential. Full 
details are provided in Appendix 2 for Members’ consideration. 

Page 34



 

Table 5 – Summary of General Fund Inescapable Service Pressures   
      

Service Area £m 

Corporate Services 1.470 

Miscellaneous Finance 1.800 
Economy & Environment   1.316 

Social Services 9.293 
General Fund Housing 2.397 

Education & Lifelong Learning 2.265 
TOTAL: - 18.542 

 
5.3.11 A growth bid of £319k is included in the Education & Lifelong Learning total above in relation to 

Additional Learning Needs (ALN). A key priority for the Directorate is ensuring compliance with 
the ALN Act and Code, and ensuring that statutory duties for pupils with ALN are met. 
Neighbouring authorities and the majority of Local Authorities across Wales have delegated 
additional support funding to schools. In Caerphilly CBC, funding for additional support for 
schools has historically been retained centrally. The Additional Learning Needs and Education 
Tribunal (Wales) Act (2018) provides the context for revisiting activity with schools to progress 
an open and transparent model to distribute the majority of this central budget directly to our 
schools to support pupils with additional learning needs. 

 
5.3.12 Officers have been working with representative primary and secondary headteachers to identify 

an option that schools will feel is fit for purpose. The current budget for additional support is 
circa £4.2m, however over recent years this budget has consistently overspent by circa £500k. 
This cost has been met from within the vulnerable learner’s budget, specifically from the Out of 
County Placement element, as pupils have remained with Caerphilly schools. It is proposed that 
this budget is realigned internally, increasing the additional support budget by the £500k. In 
recent discussions with Headteachers it has become more apparent that there is a “hidden” 
additional cost pressure within our schools. It is proposed that the additional support budget is 
further increased by £1m in 2023/24 to recognise the pressure that schools have been facing. 
In 2022/23 there is an amount of £681k held against the Miscellaneous Finance budget, 
specifically for schools. This funding was not required when the original 2022/23 formula funding 
allocations were calculated in February 2022, and has not been required in year. It is therefore 
proposed that this funding is vired into the additional support budget to support the financial 
pressures in this area and along with the £319k proposed growth this will provide the £1m 
required. Whilst the work to support the proposed delegation of the additional support budget 
is not been yet complete, this additional funding is essential for supporting pupils with ALN in 
any model moving forward.    

 
5.3.13 The Schools cost pressures totalling £12.555m are set out in Table 6 below - 
 

Table 6 – Schools Cost Pressures 
 

 £m 

Teachers’ Pay Award 4.423 
National Joint Council (NJC) Pay Award (School-Based Staff) 0.935 

Increase in Employer Pension Contributions (NJC Staff) 0.163 
Non-Pay Inflation  5.524 

Other Service Pressures 1.509 
TOTAL: - 12.555 

 
5.3.14 Teachers’ Pay Award – The 2022/23 budget approved by Council in February 2022 assumed 

a teachers’ pay award of 3% from September 2022. However, the approved pay award was an 
uplift of 5% which required additional funding of £2.072m to be identified. This has been funded 
in 2022/23 by a one-off contribution from surplus General Fund balances, and the additional 
cost has also now been factored into the base budget for 2023/24. However, an improved 
2022/23 pay offer has recently been made to teachers following industrial action and this will 

Page 35



 

result in additional in-year costs and have a recurring budgetary impact. This recent offer has 
now been rejected and further industrial action is planned. It is currently assumed that WG will 
provide funding to meet the additional costs of the final 2022/23 pay settlement. 

 
5.3.15 A further pay award of 3.5% is currently assumed for teachers from September 2023 (in line 

with the indicative uplift figure provided by the Independent Pay Review Body on Teachers Pay).  
 
5.3.16 National Joint Council (NJC) Pay Award (School-Based Staff) – The 2023/24 Budget 

Proposals include budgetary growth to fully fund the full-year impact of the 2022/23 pay award, 
along with additional budget provision for an assumed pay award of 5% from April 2023. 

 
5.3.17 Increase in Employer Pension Contributions (NJC Staff) – As mentioned in paragraph 5.3.6 

the draft results of the 2002 triennial valuation of the Greater Gwent (Torfaen) Pension Fund 
require a 1% increase in the employer’s contribution for 2023/24.  

 
5.3.18 Non-Pay Inflation - As detailed in paragraph 5.3.8, inflation is at its highest level in 40 years 

with the Consumer Prices Index (CPI) inflation rate peaking at 11.1% during 2022. For schools, 
additional energy costs of £4.682m are anticipated for 2023/24 and other inflationary increases 
are expected to result in additional costs of £842k. 

 
5.3.19 Other Schools Service Pressures – This includes the following: - 

 

 School floor area related changes. 

 Retrospective adjustments in relation to pupil numbers.  

 Social needs funding linked to increased free school meal numbers. 

 Demand pressures linked to Specialist Resource Bases (SRB’s) or Specialist Satellite 
provision.   

 
5.4 2023/24 Savings Proposals 

 
5.4.1 Savings proposals have been identified for the 2023/24 financial year totalling £11.834m. 
 These are summarised in Table 7 with further details being provided in Appendix 3.   

 
Table 7 – 2023/24 Draft Savings Proposals   
      

Service Area Permanent 
Savings 

£m 

Temporary 
Savings 

£m 

Total 
Savings 

£m 

Corporate Services 0.366 0.742 1.108 

Miscellaneous Finance 0.527 4.092 4.619 

Economy & Environment   0.804 1.334 2.138 

Social Services 0.594 0.000 0.594 

Education & Lifelong Learning 0.341 0.693 1.034 

Schools 2.341 0.000 2.341 
TOTAL: - 4.972 6.862 11.834 

 
5.4.2 The savings proposals have been split into 2 categories, those that are permanent and those 
 that are temporary (i.e. not sustainable in the medium to longer term). Savings of a temporary 
 nature are not ideal, but they do provide a window of opportunity to identify, approve and 
 implement permanent savings in readiness for the 2024/25 financial year.  
 
5.4.3 Members will note that there is a proposed saving of £2.341m for schools. To put this into 
 context, Table 6 of this report shows total schools cost pressures of £12.555m for 2023/24. It is 
 proposed that additional funding of £10.214m is allocated to schools which is an uplift of 8.4%. 
 This will result in anticipated pay awards and general non-pay inflationary increases being 
 funded but estimated energy cost increases of £4.682m will only be funded at 50%. Schools 

Page 36



 

 will therefore be asked to manage £2.341m of the energy increase themselves through energy 
 reduction initiatives and wider cost efficiencies.    
 
5.4.4 The proposed growth of £10.214m for schools will exceed Caerphilly CBC’s proportion of the 
 consequential funding of £117m provided to WG by the UK Government for Education as 
 referenced in paragraph 5.2.5 of this report.     
 
5.5 Proposed Use of Reserves 

 
5.5.1 To achieve a balanced budget for 2023/24 it will be necessary to utilise reserves as a further 
 one-off measure. This again provides a short window of opportunity to develop sustainable 
 solutions to address the budget deficit from 2024/25. It is proposed that the reserves in Table 8 
 are released to support the budget for 2023/24.   
 

Table 8 – Proposed Use of Reserves 
 

Description £m £m 

Covid-19 Earmarked Reserve  5.000 

Cost of Living Crisis Contingency  2.098 
WG Council Tax Collection Grant (2020/21)  1.122 

WG Council Tax Collection Grant (2021/22)  0.878 
Uncommitted Capital Earmarked Reserves  0.915 

Service Reserves: -   

• Corporate Services 3.262  

• Social Services 1.119  

• Education & Lifelong Learning 0.951 5.332 
TOTAL: -  15.345 

 
5.5.2  Members will note the proposed use of service reserves totalling £5.332m. These reserves have 

been reviewed in detail and can be repurposed to support the 2023/24 budget. Further details 
are provided in Appendix 4 

 
5.5.3 The proposed savings for Education & Lifelong Leaning in Appendix 3 include a temporary 

saving of £346k in relation to the budget for the Directorate’s 50% repairs and maintenance 
contribution to schools. This saving is proposed for 2023/24 only and the £346k will instead be 
met through a one-off contribution from the LMS Contingency Reserve.   

 
5.6 General Fund Balances 
 
5.6.1 Details of the projected movement on General Fund balances are provided in Appendix 5.   
 
5.6.2 The current General Fund balance is £11.852m, which reflects the position previously agreed 

by Council. 
 
5.6.3 Based on the 2022/23 month 9 Whole-Authority Revenue Budget Monitoring Report, it is 

currently anticipated that there will be a net transfer to the General Fund of £2.239m from a 
projected year-end net underspend across all Directorates.  

 
5.6.4 Cabinet will recall that in previous years the Council Tax surplus has been channelled through 

the General Fund each year to support the base budget in the following financial year. In normal 
years this surplus is estimated to be circa £1.050m but Members will be aware that Council Tax 
collection has been adversely impacted during the pandemic. It would not be prudent at this 
stage to assume that the Council Tax surplus for 2022/23 will be at the levels achieved prior to 
the pandemic. It is therefore recommended that the £1.050m required to support the 2023/24 
budget should be funded through a call on the General Fund.  

 
5.6.5 After allowing for the above movements the updated projected balance for the General Fund as 

at 31 March 2023 is £13.041m. The Section 151 Officer usually recommends a minimum 

Page 37



 

General Fund balance of 3% of the Net Revenue Budget which for 2023/24 is £13.162m. The 
current projected balance of £13.041m is marginally lower than this but this will be reviewed 
again when the 2022/23 Provisional Revenue Budget Outturn Report is presented to Cabinet 
and Council in July 2023.  

 
5.7 Council Tax Implications 2023/24 

 
5.7.1 The  budget proposals within this report include a proposed increase of 7.9% in Council Tax for 

the 2023/24 financial year. This will increase the Caerphilly CBC Band D precept from £1,253.95 
to £1,353.01 i.e. an annual increase of £99.06 or weekly increase of £1.91. 

 
5.7.2 The proposed increase of 7.9% for 2023/24 will result in the following totals for the Caerphilly 

CBC element of the Council Tax (the Police & Crime Commissioner and Town/Community 
Council precepts will be added to these totals when confirmed at a later date): - 

 
 Table 9 – 2023/24 Council Tax (CCBC Element) at 7.9% Increase   
 

Band Council Tax 
(CCBC Element) 

£ 

Weekly 
Increase 

£ 

A 902.01 1.27 
B 1,052.34 1.48 
C 1,202.68 1.69 
D 1,353.01 1.91 
E 1,653.68 2.33 
F 1,954.35 2.75 
G 2,255.02 3.18 
H 2,706.02 3.81 
I 3,157.03 4.45 

 
5.8 Capital Programme 

 
5.8.1 The proposed Capital Programme for the three-year period 2023/24 to 2025/26 is detailed in 

Appendix 6 and summarised in Table 10. 
 
Table 10 – Summary of Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2025/26 

 

  2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 

  £m £m £m 

        

Capital Programme proposals 11.636 9.668 9.599 

WG funding available (9.772) (8.157) (8.157) 

        

Capital funding gap 1.864 1.511 1.422 

        

Funded by: -       

Surplus/(Deficit) b/fwd 0.287 0.000  0.000  

One-Off funding from MRP Policy Review 1.449 1.383 1.314 

RCCO budget (Miscellaneous Finance) 0.128 0.128 0.128 

        

Total Additional Funding 1.864 1.511 1.442 

        

Surplus/(Deficit) carried forward    0.000      0.000      0.000 

Page 38



 

5.9 Financial Outlook for Future Years 

 
5.9.1 Due to the unprecedented levels of inflation, the current economic outlook, and the range of 

temporary measures that are proposed for the 2023/24 financial year, it is clear that the Council 
will continue to face significant financial challenges moving forward. With this is in mind the 
Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFP) has been updated based on a range of assumptions, 
resulting in a potential savings requirement of £48.335m for the two-year period 2024/25 to 
2025/26. Details are provided in Appendix 7 and the following is a summary of the key 
assumptions: - 

 

 An uplift in WG funding of 2.71% for 2024/25 (based on our proportionate share of the WG 
indicative of 3.1%) and an assumption of 1% for 2025/26. 

 An increase of 4.5% in Council Tax for 2024/25 and 3.9% for 2025/26. 

 3% for pay inflation in 2024/25 and 2% for 2025/26 (covering all staff including teachers). 

 1% in 2024/25 and 0.5% in 2025/26 for NJC employer pension contributions. 

 Non-pay inflation at 3% for 2024/25 and 2% for 2025/26. 
 
5.9.2 In addition to the above, significant work has been undertaken with Directors and Heads of 

Service to identify further potential inescapable service cost pressures that will need to be 
considered in future years. These are currently estimated at circa £10.7m for 2024/25 and 
£5.5m for 2025/26. This is work in progress and the figures will be subject to change moving 
forward.   

 
5.9.3 The temporary measures in the 2023/24 Draft Budget Proposals totaling £22.207m can be used 

for one year only. Whilst the temporary savings and the prudent use of our reserves provides 
an opportunity to smooth the path to major reform and transformation, we have only one chance 
to do this. As Members are acutely aware reserves can only be used once and therefore do not 
offer a sustainable long-term solution to bridging the budget gap of this and future years.  
 

5.9.4 Given the scale of the challenge that we collectively face, a financial strategy that seeks to 
continuously salami slice our services and deplete our reserves is not a sustainable or an 
appropriate approach, especially when the demands upon our services are far higher than ever, 
as our communities continue to present far greater and increasingly complex needs to us. To 
ensure we are able to meet the needs of our communities, whilst operating with reduced 
finances, a whole council and a whole county borough holistic approach is needed.      
 

5.9.5  At its meeting on 12 June 2019 the Council’s Cabinet approved the Future Caerphilly 
Transformation Strategy, Team Caerphilly – Better Together. This Strategy set out details of 
a major transformation programme to examine how a future operating model for the Council 
could be developed. The principles of the new operating model included how services are 
prioritised, how they can become more business efficient, to explore opportunities for greater 
customer focus and digital delivery, and to consider alternative delivery models and seek out 
commercial opportunities.  Furthermore, to enable the Council to continue providing high quality 
value for money services in an environment that will require new approaches and new skills, 
the Strategy acknowledged that a new relationship will need to be built with staff and 
communities.  

 
5.9.6 The Strategy is multi-faceted and at the core of the programme of change is the new mantra of 

Social Heart and Commercial Head. This recognises a commitment to public service and the 
needs of citizens, but also demonstrates a commitment to explore commercial and investment 
opportunities, where appropriate, to generate income that can be reinvested in services to help 
them remain resilient in the current challenging financial climate. 

 
5.9.7 The strategic programme of “whole-authority” work is being delivered through the following key 

themes, which underpin the new operating model of the Council: - 
 
 

Page 39



 

 
 
 
5.9.8 Good progress has been made in implementing the Strategic Action Plan that underpins the 

Transformation Strategy. However, the emergence of Covid-19 and the Council’s prolonged 
focussed response to the pandemic naturally hindered the overall intended pace of 
transformational change.  

 
5.9.9 The Council gleaned much learning through its response to Covid-19 which helped reshape 

and expand the transformation programme. At its meeting on 22 July 2020, Cabinet endorsed 
the inclusion of ten corporate reviews within the Team Caerphilly – Better Together 
programme, all of which expand on or embed further many of the positive changes implemented 
in response to Covid-19. The Corporate Reviews are as follows: - 

 
1 Walk in Services Review 

2 Remote Contact Review 

3 Front Line Delivery Review 

4 Support Services Review 

5 Information, Insight and Intelligence Review 

6 Flexible Working Review 

7 Sustainable Financial Planning Review 

8 Workforce Development Review 

9 Corporate Volunteering & Community Partnership Review 

10 Decision-Making Review 

 
5.9.10 The Council also launched an ambitious “Place Shaping” investment programme for the county 

borough, identifying potential investments of circa £500m spanning the next few years, which 
will lever in significant socio-economic benefits.  

 
5.9.11 However, the sharp decline across the public sector financial landscape has hindered the pace 

of delivery across the Placeshaping investment programme and the programme requires a 
fundamental review, aligned with the emerging Corporate Plan.   

 
5.9.12 Cabinet and the Corporate Management Team (CMT) have reviewed the key elements of the 

transformational programme and the Placeshaping programme previously agreed by Members 
in the context of the current financial challenges and the emerging Corporate Plan and have 
concluded that the model is still relevant, indeed even more relevant than before, as it offers us 

Page 40



 

the strategic framework to develop a new operating model for the Council, which will ensure we 
don’t simply turn services off, rather we will deliver services differently and more efficiently.  
 

5.9.13 The revised “TeamCaerphilly – Better together” operating model offers three distinct 
elements: -  
 
1)  A Transformational Programme consisting of significant corporate projects that will drive 

change across the whole organisation, these will include: - 
 

 The creation of one-stop shop hubs at key locations across the county borough – 
providing the face of the Council within the locality, where residents can obtain 
information or access to key services.  

 Digital by default – Service requests, routine enquiries, financial processes, to be 
automated. 

 Agile/flexible working – implementing the next phase of our agile policy, maximising 
usage of our key buildings and rationalisation of our comprehensive building stock.  

 Support services review – undertake a strategic review of support services across all 
services to create multi-disciplined roles serving the whole organisation. 

 Managing the demand across Health and Social Care. 

 Centralisation and rationalisation of IT systems and processes. 
 
These strategic projects will be delivered and managed by specific project teams and a 
repurposed programme office. 
 
2)  Service Reviews 

 
Each Head of Service will be required to review their service areas through the new operating 
model lens, demonstrating how the service can be delivered more efficiently and effectively. 
Annual financial targets will be provided to each Corporate Director and respective Heads of 
Service to help frame the overall requirement. The following list is not exhaustive but provides 
examples of potential areas for review: - 
 

 Enforcement and education provision 

 Catering and cleaning 
 Tourism venues and income generation  

 Library and customer services 

 Use of our Fleet 

 School improvement 

 Community centres  

 Waste Strategy  

 Youth Service 
 
These projects will be monitored by the Chief Executive with support from the Programme office.  
 
3)  Placeshaping Investment Programme 

 
An integrated capital investment programme, using circa £30m of Council funding to lever in 
further significant investment, will be developed spanning the county borough. This will improve 
the economic, environmental and social prosperity of our county borough and the communities 
within it. Examples include the following: - 
 

 A469 Troedrhiwfuwch strategic highway improvement 

 New secondary, primary and Welsh Medium schools provision with integrated leisure, 
library and community use.  

 New build passive social housing, creating new communities.  
 New community hubs, providing one-stop shop access to the Council. 

 Integrated public service hub with health and education. 

Page 41



 

 New Centre for Vulnerable Learners 

 New bus/rail transport interchange. 

 New enhanced tourism destination at Cwmcarn forest drive  

 Improved trains and more frequent rail travel along the Rhymney Valley line.  

 New active travel cycle provision across the county borough. 
 New market and wider town centre regeneration. 

 Enhancement of recycling centres.      
        

5.9.14 This capital investment programme is significant in terms of scale and complexity and will need 
to be supported through a formal project management approach via a repurposed programme 
office. Importantly, to maximise the benefit of such an investment programme requires us to 
look across the county borough as a whole, rather than a sub-local level. It is important we 
recognise and maximise the opportunities each local ward area can bring and receive when 
looking at the total county borough area strategically. One such example to demonstrate this 
approach, is the increased and improved rail connections between Rhymney and Caerphilly, 
this investment could facilitate ease of access via rail across the East of the county borough if 
a new strategic leisure facility were located at Caerphilly.  
 

5.9.15 Crucially, to deliver this ambitious and exciting Placeshaping investment programme, key 
decisions will need to be taken regarding a number of existing strategies we have in place, 
these include the Sport and Active Recreation Strategy (SARS), emerging draft Waste Strategy, 
21st Century Schools Programme and the emerging Local Development Plan, as examples.         

 
5.9.16 Whilst we have a plan to address the significant financial challenges that we face, it is important 

that this is mobilised quickly and progresses at pace, early within 2023. This ambitious 
transformation programme will need additional staff resources to implement and a growth bid 
of £324k is included within the 2023/24 Budget Proposals. Included within the growth bid, is a 
new role of Head of Waste and permanent funding for four Project Managers in the 
Transformation Team. A draft Waste Strategy will shortly be considered by Cabinet, and if 
approved, this will require a dedicated Head of Service to lead and implement the required 
changes to ensure we not just meet the statutory waste targets but exceed them.   

 
5.9.17 These additional staff resources are required to deliver the exciting and bold over-arching 

change programme for the county borough and the organisation, ensuring that both remain 
sustainable and resilient, economically, socially, and environmentally over the longer term. If 
the 2023/24 Budget Proposals are approved, the Chief Executive will implement a delivery plan 
to mobilise the organisation promptly.  

 
5.10 Conclusion 

 
5.10.1 This report provides details of the Budget Proposals for 2023/24 based on the WG Provisional 

Local Government Financial Settlement. 
 
5.10.2 A balanced budget can be delivered for 2023/24 based on a combination of permanent and 

temporary savings totalling £11.834m, the one-of use of reserves totalling £15.345m and an 
increase of 7.9% in Council Tax. 

  
5.10.3 The report also provides details of the updated Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFP), which 

currently shows a potential savings requirement of £48.335m for the two-tear period 2024/25 to 
2025/26. 

 
5.10.4  The scale of the financial challenge facing the Council requires new approaches to service 

delivery and this will be driven through our Transformation and Placeshaping Investment 
Programmes. It is vital that these are developed at pace and that key decisions are made early 
to ensure that the projected savings requirement for 2024/25 and 2025/26 can be delivered.   

   
 

Page 42



 

6. ASSUMPTIONS 
 

6.1 A range of assumptions have been made throughout the report in respect of pay and non-pay 
inflationary increases, inescapable service pressures, and the level of funding settlements 
moving forward. 

 
 
7. SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 

7.1 Budget impact assessments and integrated impact assessments (where required) have been 
completed and can be accessed through the following links: -  

 
 Budget Impact Assessments 2023-2024 

English - budget-impact-assessments-2023-2024  
 
Cymraeg - budget-impact-assessments-2023-2024 

 
Integrated Impact Assessments 2023-2024  

English - integrated-impact-assessments-2023-2024  
 
Cymraeg - integrated-impact-assessments-2023-2024 

 
7,2 The budget proposals include a number of areas where a full integrated impact assessment 

was deemed to be required due to the potential for impact on persons with protected 
characteristics or due to social-economic disadvantage. Each impact assessment considers the 
mitigating factors. The recommendations of each of these are provided below: - 

 
7.3       Council Tax 

 
7.3.1 The recommendation is to implement the proposed increase in Council Tax in the context of the 

significant and unprecedented financial pressures facing the Council.  
 

7.3.2 The Council Tax Reduction Scheme supports people living in the county borough who face the 
most socio-economic disadvantage. 15,999 households receive support with their Council Tax 
payments representing 19.89% of all households in the county borough. 8,253 of these 
households (10.26%) receive the maximum 100% level of support. 
 

7.3.3 In addition, the Council has implemented the Caerphilly Cares service to provide early-stage 
preventative support for the most vulnerable individuals, including signposting to financial 
support and advice.  

 
7.4      Community Empowerment Fund 
          

7.4.1 The Community Empowerment Fund is a relatively new ‘additionality’ budget and assessing the 
take-up and impact of the funding is ongoing. Projects tend to cover a wide variety of outcomes 
due to the criteria being widely drafted, having originally been based on community consultation. 
A survey will be undertaken this coming financial year to gather feedback on project outcomes. 
This will be assessed in the context of any future financial year planning beyond 2023/24. 

 
7.4.2 It is recommended that a reduction in the budget will be accommodated within the likely total 

requests for support within each ward area. Wards will be made aware at the earliest opportunity 
of the amount that has been allocated for the next financial year, subject to agreement by 
Council on the proposal to reduce the budget by 30%. 

 
7.4.3 In addition to delivering on the reduced budget, the Council will continue to promote the Welsh 

Church Act Fund and the Grants To The Voluntary Sector small grant scheme, as well as 

Page 43

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/involved/consultations/join-the-caerphilly-conversation/budget-impact-assessments-2023-2024?lang=en-GB
https://www.caerffili.gov.uk/involved/consultations/join-the-caerphilly-conversation/budget-impact-assessments-2023-2024?lang=cy-gb
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/involved/consultations/join-the-caerphilly-conversation/integrated-impact-assessments-2023-2024?lang=en-GB
https://www.caerffili.gov.uk/involved/consultations/join-the-caerphilly-conversation/integrated-impact-assessments-2023-2024?lang=cy-gb


 

working with the local Community Voluntary Council to signpost other sources of support for 
local organisations.  

 
7.5      Well-being, Technical Assistance and Service Level Agreements with the Voluntary 

Sector 
   

7.5.1 In the context of the funding pressures facing the Council the budget for technical assistance 
and sustainability/well-being should be removed. Applicant organisations will be signposted to 
other sources of support, as far as it is possible, and in partnership with the local Community 
Voluntary Council.  

 
7.5.2 The Service Level Agreements with the three voluntary sector organisations that have 

previously been recipients will remain at the same level as 2022/23. Projects that may be 
deliverable within the available budget will be negotiated as part of the process for 2023/24 
recognising that as costs of delivery increase, what may achievable within the budget available 
may have to decrease. 

                                                                                                                  
7.6       Temporary Reduction in the Book Fund 
      

7.6.1 The proposal to reduce the book fund by 20% is a temporary measure to meet the savings 
requirement for the 2023/24 budget. A series of mitigating actions are described in the impact 
assessment. 

 
7.6.2 The recent ‘What Matters’ conversation took place in November/December 2022 and identified 

that residents feel that libraries are a key service that the Council should prioritise. The budget 
consultation undertaken in January/February 2023 told us that residents feel that libraries are 
a vital part of the community and could be used more. A reduction to the book fund raised some 
concern but overall was considered acceptable for one year only. Longer-term reductions would 
have a greater impact on those who need the library service most e.g. those who experience 
socio-economic disadvantage and people with protected characteristics.  

 
7.7       Blackwood to Ystrad Mynach Rail Link 

 
7.7.1 The Raillinc 901 contract between Blackwood and Ystrad Mynach rail station is the contract 

with the highest subsidy per passenger at £13.43 (for the 12 months to October 2022). The 
latest figures to October 2022 show over 900 passengers per month. The recommendation from 
the integrated impact assessment is to proceed with the proposal in the context of the financial 
pressures facing the Council. 

 
7.7.2 The removal of subsidy for the rail link service was met with a mixed response. Residents felt 

that the level of subsidy was too high to be maintained, but suggested alternative routes may 
be more viable (nearest train station to Blackwood is Pengam) and suggested that the service 
could be opened up to non-rail users. 

 
7.8       SENCOM 

 
7.8.1 The proposal focussed on efficiencies and non-staffing costs. While the proposal recognised 

that further consideration and consultation would be required regarding mitigation of risk before 
a final agreement were made, the decision has been taken not to proceed with this proposal for 
the 2023/24 financial year 

 
 
8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

8.1 As detailed throughout the report. 
 
 

Page 44



 

9. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 

 
9.1 Where staffing reductions are required as a consequence of savings proposals the Council will 

firstly try to achieve this through ‘natural wastage’ and not filling vacancies. However, where 
this is not possible the Council will utilise agreed HR policies and compulsory redundancies will 
only be considered as a last resort after all other options have been fully exhausted. 

 
9.2 The Trade Unions will be fully engaged in proposals to reshape services moving forward.  
 
 
10.  CONSULTATIONS 

 
10.1 An ongoing period of far-reaching community engagement has supported the development of 

the Council’s budget setting for 2023/24.  
 
10.2 Initially, during November and December 2022, an engagement programme entitled ‘What 

matters to you?’ encouraged residents to give their views and consequently helped the Council 
to gain an understanding of the services that residents feel are most needed and valued and 
where residents feel the Council should prioritise its budget spend. The insights from this 
engagement were key in shaping the draft budget proposals for 2023/24 prior to going out to 
public consultation in January 2023.  

 
10.3 The follow up engagement programme ‘The Caerphilly Conversation – Budget Consultation 

2023/24’ was designed to seek the views of residents and key stakeholders in relation to the 
three key elements of the draft budget proposals, namely, the use of £15.051million reserves 
at this time, the proposed increase in council tax of 7.9% and the draft list of savings proposals 
(both temporary and permanent) totalling £12.421million. 

 
10.4 This engagement programme, as well as offering residents an opportunity to have their say 

through a survey, also saw a large number of opportunities for face-to-face engagement in 
libraries, and also through social media and with targeted engagement with stakeholder groups 
that represent seldom heard communities.  

 
10.5 The key findings from this engagement programme included: -  

 
 62% of survey respondents agreed or strongly agreed with the one-off use of reserves at 

this time. Feedback received through face-to-face conversations and survey comments 
highlighted that in many cases, where residents disagreed with the proposal, it was 
because they felt that the Council should be using more of its reserves at this time. 

 Over a quarter (26%) of survey respondents agreed with the proposed 7.9% council tax 
increase or would be prepared to pay even more. A further 39% would support a lower 
level of council tax increase while 35% would not support any increase in council 
tax.  Feedback from conversations with residents reflected this view. While many said that 
they understood the need to increase council tax to maintain services, there was concern 
that, at this time, any increase in council tax would impact on those least able to afford an 
increase. 

 Areas of the proposals that respondents particularly agreed with included a reduction in 
mileage budgets, deletion of vacant posts, vacancy management across the organisation 
and budget realignments that will have no impact on residents. Income generation through 
methods such as the sale of felled timber and an increase in charges for MOTs etc was 
largely supported, as was a reduction in the tourism subsidy, with the suggestion that 
venues could generate income through visitor attendance. Reducing the frequency of 
grass cutting to encourage biodiversity was also received largely positively.  

 Areas of the proposals that respondents particularly disagreed with included a reduction 
in community grants and voluntary/community sector support, and any cuts to Social 
Services that will impact on the most vulnerable residents. Savings proposals associated 
with services for children with disabilities were of particular concern. The temporary 
reduction in highways maintenance budget featured throughout the discussions, as did 

Page 45



 

any cuts that would impact directly on schools and education. Protecting libraries and 
youth services was also a consistent theme, and while it was thought that income 
generation was in the main, a positive way forward, there were mixed views regarding 
income generation through increased charges for services that are accessed by residents 
and the community (e.g. review of sports and leisure fees and a proposed increase in 
sports pitch fees). 

 
10.6 A full summary of the findings from the ‘Caerphilly Conversation – Budget Consultation 2023/24’ 

can be found at www.caerphilly.gov.uk/caerphillyconversation  
 
10.7 On 25 January 2023, a Joint Scrutiny Committee meeting was held to consider the 2023/24 

Draft Budget Proposals. The key points raised during the meeting were as follows: - 
 

 The Leader emphasised that although the approaches taken to address the budget 
pressures, including the use of reserves, can smooth the path to major changes in the 
way the Council operates, the Authority is still faced with a starting deficit of £21m for the 
2024/25 financial year and transformation will therefore be key in delivering services 
moving forward.   

 

 The Leader also explained that a holistic approach to transformation is needed and that 
the Council wishes to avoid the prospect of compulsory redundancies and the cutting of 
key services being faced by other Authorities.  

 

 A Member asked about the long-term goals for tourism venues in the county borough, 
citing the example of St David’s Hall Cardiff being sold to an external organisation, and 
asked if this is a model that is being considered for Caerphilly owned venues. It was 
confirmed that alternative operating options are being examined and a review is currently 
underway, with a long-term tourism strategy due to be launched. The recent reduction in 
the subsidy to Blackwood Miners Institute was also highlighted, which is due to the 
increased programme of events at the venue. Members were reminded that the Council’s 
tourism venues will also need to change the way they operate in line with the Authority’s 
plans to change the way it delivers services. 

 

 Members asked if there were plans to change the grass-cutting regime in terms of the 
number of cuts per year, and if it would take into account biodiversity considerations, such 
as a wildflower seeding programme. The Committee was advised that a Grass Cutting 
report is scheduled for consideration by the Environment and Sustainability Scrutiny 
Committee which will set out these proposals but will need to take into account the impact 
on climate change in view of the Council having declared a Climate Emergency. 

 

 Members raised concerns regarding the proposed reduction in the caretaker subsidy for 
community centres and were of the view that this could have a significant impact on the 
operating viability of some centres. The Committee was advised that an Integrated Impact 
Assessment has been completed in respect of this savings proposal, and at present the 
Council funds 11 hours of caretaking costs for each centre, which is fully utilised by some 
centres but not by others, depending on their needs. Therefore, some centres are 
underused and need to become more proactive in their approach, and the Council is 
willing to work with these community centres to help them become more self-sufficient, as 
the Council cannot afford to fund caretaking hours and maintain buildings that are only 
used for a few hours per week.  

 

 A Member highlighted the reported underspends of £38m in the 2021/22 budget, together 
with the level of funds held in reserves, and enquired whether these could be used to fund 
the budget deficit for 2023/24. The Head of Financial Services & S151 Officer explained 
that underspends over the past two years were due to services not running at full capacity 
during the Covid-19 pandemic, together with significant additional funding from Welsh 
Government that was made available at the time. However, these underspends have been 
reported to Cabinet and Council and have been ringfenced for specific purposes, including 

Page 46

http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/caerphillyconversation


 

£14.3m from the General Fund being released for purposes such as funding the additional 
cost of pay awards, and establishing the cost-of-living hardship fund and the cost-of-living 
crisis fund.   

 

 In relation to the reserves totalling £233m, a substantial portion has been allocated or 
ringfenced for specific purposes including the Housing Revenue Account, the 21st 
Century Schools Programme, a new respite facility, the highways programmes, and 
funding to support the wellbeing and placeshaping framework.  It was also clarified that a 
large proportion of reserves cannot be reallocated elsewhere as they have already been 
agreed for specific purposes. 

 

 During the meeting, reference was also made to the proposed use of reserves totalling 
£15m, with assurances sought that the Council is able to release the reserves relating to 
£5m for Covid-19 and £2.098m for the Cost-of-Living Crisis Contingency. The Head of 
Financial Services & S151 Officer confirmed that the proposal to release these reserves 
has been reviewed in detail. 

 

 Several Members raised concerns throughout the meeting in relation to the proposed 
7.9% Council Tax increase and highlighted the impact of this increase on local residents, 
particularly in view of the cost-of-living crisis and the additional financial burden this would 
place on them. The Scrutiny Committee was reminded that 75.81% of households are in 
Bands A-C, and that the most vulnerable residents are supported through the Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme, with 15,999 households (19.89%) receiving some level of support 
and 8,253 of these households receiving a 100% reduction. One Member suggested 
alternative budget proposals, such as a one-off reduction against the General Fund 
balance to 2% which would release £3.9m to be offset against Council Tax, reducing this 
to a 2.1% increase.  

 

 A Member questioned the need for additional staff as set out in the report when balanced 
against the proposed budget cuts. The Chief Executive advised the Scrutiny Committee 
that she has a statutory responsibility as Head of Paid Service to ensure that the Authority 
has the appropriate staff and skills to deliver the services that the Council is being asked 
to deliver, with some service areas extremely stretched and hence the proposals seek to 
fill these gaps. Members were asked to note the vacant posts being deleted as part of the 
savings proposals, together with the significant programme of change being embarked 
upon by the Authority, with it emphasised that to manage a programme of this scale, 
additional capacity needs to be secured in order to lead and implement the required 
changes.   

 

 A Member raised concerns around the proposed cuts to Service Level Agreements for 
the Voluntary Sector and it was explained that although the Council is greatly appreciative 
of the value of this particular sector, the Council is faced with the alternative of making 
cuts to key services in order to meet the £35m funding deficit, and that the voluntary sector 
are still able to secure funding through alternative streams.  Members also referenced the 
proposed deletion of the Community Empowerment Fund and felt that this proposal was 
premature given that many local organisations did not have the opportunity to use their 
allocation during the pandemic, and they sought clarification on the funding assistance 
available to these organisations in the future. Officers confirmed that these comments 
would be taken on board and considered as part of the consultation process on the draft 
budget proposals. 

 

 Clarification was sought on the proposed budget realignment across Social Services, 
particularly in relation to the support around Children with Disabilities and domiciliary care, 
with a Member expressing concern around whether demand is being met, and also 
suggested that these underspends could be used to recruit additional foster carers to help 
address the overspend across Children’s Services in relation to independent/residential 
home provision. The Committee was assured that demand is being fully met, and that 
there has been a reduction in demand across these particular services, hence the 

Page 47



 

proposed budget realignments, and in some cases the needs of service users has 
changed which had led to the Health Board taking on provision of this service in place of 
the  local authority, as the level of need has changed from social care to health care.  
Members were also assured that foster care recruitment is the focus of a very active and 
successful campaign at both local and national level, and that this area does not require 
additional investment. 

 

 Reference was made to the £1.747m cost pressure for temporary accommodation and a 
Member asked if consideration had been given towards recycling multiple units into 
alternative provision to offset the costs used for private provision. Members were advised 
that this inescapable service pressure is representative of the demands faced by all local 
authorities in Wales in terms of temporary accommodation, and all alternatives are being 
looked at, including construction methods, use of pods, bed and breakfast 
accommodation, and bringing empty properties back into use, and pressure is being put 
on Welsh Government in this regard. 

 

 During the course of the meeting, Members expressed concerns around the proposals for 
increased pitch fees, stating that many of the local sports clubs and local users will find a 
20% increase difficult to absorb.  Queries were also received around the proposed MOT 
fees increase, together with a query on community asset transfer, with clarification on both 
matters provided by Officers. 

 
10.8 On 02 February 2023, the 2023/24 Draft Budget Proposals were presented to the Voluntary 

Sector Liaison Committee. The key points raised during the meeting were as follows: - 
 

 A representative of the Voluntary Sector sought clarification on the Voluntary Sector 
Service Level Agreements (SLA) budget realignment as there was no mention of which 
organisations it applied to and a request was made for it be removed from the 2023/24 
draft savings proposals. The Corporate Policy Manager explained that the savings 
proposal of £25,200 has never been used for the Service Level Agreements and that it is 
an amount in the total Voluntary Sector budget which has been unallocated for a number 
of years. The proposal will therefore not result in a cash cut to the current Service Level 
Agreements and the budget available to support them would be the same in the coming 
financial year. The Corporate Policy Manager highlighted that the details of the effect of 
the proposed cut were set out in more detail in the Integrated Impact Assessments that 
are hyperlinked to the main budget report that had been circulated prior to the meeting.  
The Committee was informed that the recipient organisations will be contacted very soon 
to discuss the Service Level Agreements for the next financial year. 

 

 The Committee raised concerns regarding the 50% reduction in the subsidy for Caretaker 
costs in Community Centres and it was suggested that the budget of each individual 
Community Centre is taken into consideration. In response to the concerns raised, the 
Head of Public Protection, Community & Leisure Services acknowledged that Community 
Centres are in different situations, in terms of how they might accommodate the savings 
proposal, and that some may be in a better position than others. The Committee was 
advised that at the moment there is a blanket service provision across all of the 
Community Centres and therefore the reduction is being proposed across the board.  
Members of the Committee were asked to note this is a part-year saving that will allow 
work to be undertaken in the first half of the financial year with the Community Centres to 
introduce the proposal.  During the course of discussion, further comments were made in 
relation to the 50% reduction and it was felt that this would mean the closure of many 
Community Centres across the county borough. It was highlighted that Community 
Centres are also facing huge increases in their fuel costs and despite this many Centres 
are opening as warm spaces to help the less fortunate in the communities. In conclusion, 
a representative of the Voluntary Sector offered a number of solutions to help address 
this matter. These included asking each Community Centre Management Committee if 
they feel the need to close their Community Centre, to help streamline costs and the 
number of Centres, calculating each Community Centre’s caretaking costs to base it on 

Page 48



 

actual usage and floor area instead of the current flat rate of 12 hours, adding details of 
each Community Centre’s weekly programme to the Council’s website, and providing 
each Community Centre with a copy of the three-yearly building condition survey in order 
for the Management Committees to prioritise improvements and repairs to keep the 
buildings up to standard. 

 

 Concerns were also raised regarding the proposed deletion of the Community 
Empowerment Fund budget. It was commented that the Community Empowerment Fund 
has delivered some very useful projects, especially where wards are able to collaborate, 
and a request was made for it to continue as it strengthens the rapport between 
Councillors and their wards. The Corporate Policy Manager reminded the Committee that 
the current proposal is that any underspend in the 2022/23 financial year will be carried 
forward into the 2023/24 financial year, which would be on a ward basis for the first six 
months and then pooled for the second six months of the financial year. In conclusion, the 
Committee requested the Community Empowerment Fund be continued into the future 
and not just monies rolled over into the next financial year. 

 

 A Councillor requested that the proposal to increase the current scale of charges for use 
of sports pitches by 20% be reconsidered. It was noted that the reason behind this was to 
minimise the impact upon individuals and target team activities, but it was argued that the 
proposed saving would impact on individuals as it would impact on the ability for the 
parents to pay for children to take part in team sports on a regular basis. The Head of 
Public Protection, Community & Leisure Services clarified that the proposed fee increase 
relates to team sports, so the total increase would be spread across all participants taking 
part in team sports. An alternative proposal would be to look more broadly across sport 
and leisure fee charges and to introduce increases for individual users, which could be 
suggested as an alternative proposal which would be fed in as part of the budget 
consultation process. 

 

 A representative of GAVO asked how the Voluntary Sector is going to be involved in the 
process moving forward. In response, the Head of Financial Services & S151 Officer re-
iterated that as part of the TeamCaerphilly Operating Model, community engagement and 
collaboration will take place with the Voluntary Sector when working through proposals. 

 

 Another Councillor referred to the proposed 50% reduction in the subsidy for Caretaker 
costs in Community Centres and to the proposed withdrawal of the £10,000 subsidy for 
Markham Community House and Leisure Centre. A number of concerns were raised 
including the age profile of members of the Management Committee and difficulties 
recruiting, paying staff wages, and service price increases. It was felt that Markham 
Community House and Leisure Centre was being treated differently to other areas and 
the proposal would impact on the facility’s ability to continue service at existing levels, 
which could result in the closure of the facility. The Councillor highlighted that Markham 
Community House and Leisure Centre is a Council owned building and if the lease for 
Markham Community House and Leisure Centre is unable to continue, the Council would 
still be responsible for the repairs and maintenance of the building. A request was made 
for the reserves to be used for this savings proposal in order to keep the facility open.  
The Head of Public Protection, Community & Leisure Services noted that a discussion 
has taken place with the Cabinet Member for Waste, Leisure & Green Spaces who is 
minded to support a change to this proposal so that it would be a £5,000 reduction for 
2023/24. Further comments were made in relation to Markham Community House and 
Leisure Centre being an anomaly within the current Community Centre and Leisure 
Centre network. The Sport & Leisure Facilities Manager addressed the Committee to 
provide context in relation to Markham Community House and Leisure Centre and 
addressed the concerns and comments raised. The Committee was advised that the 
facility was initially put in place on the very understanding that it would be delivered by a 
volunteer network and that reactive and statutory maintenance on the site is picked up by 
the Council to significant amounts. It was highlighted that Sport & Leisure Services 
continue to support the facility by signposting activities.   

Page 49



 

 
10.9 The 2023/24 Draft Budget Proposals were shared with the Trade Unions at a meeting on 12 

January 2023, with a follow-up meeting also taking place on 09 February 2023. 
 
10.10 The GMB expressed the view that the budget proposals were positive in that there would be no 

job losses and services would be protected, and it was stressed that it is important that Trade 
Unions and Officers work closely together from an early stage in relation to any future changes 
to services in order that they are fully informed and can advise their members. Unite echoed 
the views of GMB and added that there was initially concern about potential redundancies and 
that reassurance had now been provided that this was not the case. 

 
10.11 Following the meeting on 12 January 2023, Unison provided written feedback on the 2023/24 

Draft Budget Proposals, which is attached as Appendix 8. During the meeting on 09 February 
2023, the Chief Executive clarified some of the points that had been raised in Unison’s written 
feedback: - 

 

 Section 9.2 of the report – When service reshaping proposals are being developed  the 
Trade Unions will be invited to engage at this point. 

 In relation to meeting with Directors/Heads of Service the Chief Executive noted that she 
had not received any such requests from the Trade Unions. The Chief Executive 
confirmed that whilst she fully recognises the importance of meetings between officers 
and Trade Unions, as the proposals did not detrimentally affect staff and given the 
deadline for pulling the budget report together, there simply was not an opportunity to 
engage with Trade Unions any earlier. The Leader also stated that he had apologised at 
the meeting held on 12 January 2023 for the timing of the meeting, but with the caveat 
that he did not know how the meeting could have been held any earlier given that the 
proposals were not signed off by the Labour Group until the Monday evening, and the 
meeting with Trade Unions had taken place on the Thursday. 

 Cost associated to annual leave – A report was approved by Cabinet in relation to the 6 
additional days annual leave for staff.  The proposal to fund this is included in the budget 
proposals report (£2.4m). 

 Budget re-alignment – The Head of Financial Services & S151 Officer advised that these 
budgets were being adjusted to reflect actual patterns of spend. 

 Areas of Vacancy Management – The underspends relate to vacancies where services 
have been reconfigured so Heads of Service have been able to consider whether some 
posts are still required. 

 Creation of additional posts – These are included as growth proposals and have been 
subject to a robust review of growth bids. 

 Reduction in mileage budget – A calculation has been carried out on pre and post Covid-
19 mileage payments. The Council is now operating in a different way whereby technology 
is being used thus decreasing the need for staff to drive to attend meetings.  However, it 
should be noted that where members of staff do need to claim mileage then this will 
continue to be paid at the prevailing rates. Also, when fuel costs rose significantly 
Caerphilly CBC was one of a small number of Local Authorities in Wales to put in place a 
temporary mileage protocol to increase the amount reimbursed to staff. 

 Section 5.3.4 – NJC Pay Award - The Chief Executive asked the Trade Unions  to bear in 
mind that there is only so much money available and given the financial challenges being 
faced any additional payment will affect the budget. It was agreed that this would be a 
national discussion with regards to pay, however, how the Council’s budget is spent on 
staff will ultimately need to be agreed locally. 

 
10.12 The Chief Executive stated that the narrative around this budget is that it is a temporary fix 

which will allow much needed time to discuss and consult further. The Chief Executive 
confirmed that a communication had been sent to all staff reassuring them that they were the 
Council’s greatest asset, and that there was a need to work together to adapt to the new 
challenges being faced. The Chief Executive reiterated that she is extremely proud of the way 
staff adapted during the Covid pandemic. 

 

Page 50



 

 
 
11. STATUTORY POWER  

 
11.1 The Local Government Acts 1998 and 2003. 
 
 
Authors: Christina Harrhy, Chief Executive 
 (Email: harrhc@caerphilly.gov.uk) 
 
 Stephen Harris, Head of Financial Services & S151 Officer 

(E-mail: harrisr@caerphilly.gov.uk) 
 
Consultees: Richard Edmunds, Corporate Director for Education & Corporate Services 
 (Email: edmunre@caerphilly.gov.uk) 
 Dave Street, Corporate Director for Social Services & Housing 
 (Email: streed@caerphilly.gov.uk) 
 Mark S Williams, Corporate Director for Economy & Environment 
 (Email: willims@caerphilly.gov.uk) 
 Robert Tranter, Head of Legal Services & Monitoring Officer 
 (Email: trantrj@caerphilly.gov.uk) 
 Andrew Southcombe, Finance Manager, Corporate Finance 
 (Email: southak@caerphilly.gov.uk) 
 Cllr Eluned Stenner, Cabinet Member for Performance, Economy and Enterprise 
 (Email: stenne@caerphilly.gov.uk) 
 
Appendices: - 
 
Appendix 1 – Net Revenue Budget 2023/24 
Appendix 2 – 2023/24 General Fund Inescapable Service Pressures 
Appendix 3 – 2023/24 Savings Proposals 
Appendix 4 – Proposed Use of Reserves 
Appendix 5 – Movement on General Fund 
Appendix 6 – Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2025/26 
Appendix 7 – Updated Medium-Term Financial Plan 
Appendix 8 – Feedback from Caerphilly Unison 
 
Background Papers: - 
 
Cabinet (12/06/19) – Future Caerphilly Transformation Strategy, Team Caerphilly – Better Together 
Cabinet (22/07/20) – Strengthening Team Caerphilly 
Cabinet (24/02/21) – Caerphilly Wellbeing and Place Shaping Framework 
Cabinet (18/01/23) – Draft Budget Proposals for 2023/24 

Page 51

mailto:harrhc@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:harrisr@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:edmunre@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:streed@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:willims@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:trantrj@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:southak@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:stenne@caerphilly.gov.uk
https://democracy.caerphilly.gov.uk/documents/s29234/Future%20Caerphilly%20Transformation%20Strategy.pdf?LLL=0
https://democracy.caerphilly.gov.uk/documents/s32461/Strengthening%20TeamCaerphilly.pdf?LLL=0
https://democracy.caerphilly.gov.uk/documents/s34397/Caerphilly%20Wellbeing%20and%20Place%20Shaping%20Framework.pdf?LLL=0
https://democracy.caerphilly.gov.uk/documents/s500005401/Draft%20Budget%20Proposals%20for%20202324.pdf?LLL=0


Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 52



APPENDIX 1

NET REVENUE BUDGET 2023/24

£'000 £'000

Base Budget 2022-23 395,078

General Fund Services Inflationary Cost Pressures

National Joint Council (NJC) Pay Award 10,588

Increase in Employer Pension Contributions (NJC Staff) 1,106

Foundation Living Wage 218

Non-Pay Inflation 13,262

Non-Pay Inflation (Fees and Charges) (793) 24,381

General Fund Inescapable Service Pressures and Proposed New 

Investments

Corporate Services 1,470

Miscellaneous Finance 1,800

Economy & Environment 1,316

Social Services 9,293

General Fund Housing 2,397

Education & Lifelong Learning 2,265 18,542

Schools Cost Pressures

Teachers Pay Award 4,423

National Joint Council (NJC) Pay Award for School Based Staff 935

Increase in Employer Pension Contributions (NJC Staff) 163

Non-Pay Inflation 5524

Schools Service Pressures 1,509 12,555

Savings 2023-24

Permanent savings proposals (4,972)

Temporary savings proposals (6,862) (11,834)

Proposed Expenditure 438,722

Funding

WG Support (339,610)

Council Tax (7.9 %) (82,717)

One-off Contribution from General Fund Reserve (1,050)

One-off Contribution from General Fund Earmarked Reserves (15,345)

Total Funding (438,722)

Page 53



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 54



APPENDIX 2

2023/24 General Fund Inescapable Service Pressures

Directorate Service Area Details 2023-24 

Growth

(£)

Corporate Services People Services CMT Support - Additional hours for two Personal Assistants 9,205

Corporate Services People Services Communications Team - Subscription to Copyright Licencing 

Agency

11,000

Corporate Services Various 1 day additional leave arising from the 2022/23 pay 

settlement and 5 days additional leave endorsed by Cabinet 

(14 December 2022)

11,358

Corporate Services People Services Annual contract costs for Job Evaluation system 13,000

Corporate Services People Services Costs for joint arrangement for the development of a 

Organisational Learner Experience and Learning 

Management Platform

39,600

Corporate Services Digital Services Migration of Telephone Contracts to Cloud platform 60,000

Corporate Services Digital Services 2 new Grade 9 posts in the Server Team 104,070

Corporate Services Digital Services Migration of Proactis system to Cloud platform 52,000

Corporate Services Digital Services Migration of Schools Information Management System 

(SIMS) to Cloud platform

29,160

Corporate Services Digital Services Licence costs of Employee Protection Register 12,500

Corporate Services Digital Services Office 365 licences for Servers 55,000

Corporate Services Digital Services Budget realignment for income targets that are unsustainable 100,800

Corporate Services Digital Services Migration of Midland HR system to Cloud platform 145,564

Corporate Services Digital Services Migration of Revenues and Benefits IT System to Cloud 

platform

125,368

Corporate Services Digital Services Migration of Pay360 IT System to Cloud platform 12,000

Digital Services Migration of OLAS General Ledger system to Cloud platform 86,954

Corporate Services Procurement Additional staffing capacity to deal with the rollout of a new 

contract management approach across the Council

229,951

Corporate Services Legal & Governance Electoral Services - Additional staffing capacity to deliver 

new regional responsibilities and voter ID requirements

116,931

Corporate Services Legal & Governance Net increased cost of Members Allowances following 

recommendations of the Independent Remuneration Panel.

28,000

Corporate Services Financial Services Internal Audit - Increase in hours for part-time Grade 7 post 

to ensure sufficient capacity in the Team

9,965

Corporate Services Financial Services Cashiers Administration - Increase in hours for part-time 

Grade 5 post to ensure sufficient capacity in Team

9,875

Corporate Services Policy 4 x temporary Project Managers to be made permanent to 

support delivery of the Council's Transformation Programme

208,140

Sub-Total: - 1,470,441

Corporate Services Miscellaneous Finance 21.88% increase in the Coroner's Levy 55,198

Corporate Services Miscellaneous Finance 8.75% increase in the Levy for Glamorgan Archives 2,787

Corporate Services Miscellaneous Finance 8.1% increase in the Fire Service Levy 287,767

Corporate Services Miscellaneous Finance The Authority is required to fund a Council Tax Reduction 

Scheme (CTRS). This replaced Council Tax Benefit a 

number of years ago and is a means-tested benefit that 

assists in full or part towards a resident’s Council Tax bills. 

The additional liability arises from the proposal to increase 

Council Tax by 7.9% in 2023/24

1,267,306

Corporate Services Miscellaneous Finance Adjustment required to reflect the net reduction in the 

Provisional Financial Settlement of £202k in relation to the 

tapering of WG funding for Private Finance Initiative (PFI) 

Schemes

(202,000)

Corporate Services Miscellaneous Finance The City Deal includes a borrowing requirement for the ten 

partner Local Authorities and an additional revenue budget of 

£389k is required for 2023/24 to meet the current anticipated 

cost for Caerphilly CBC’s share of potential borrowing that 

may be undertaken during the year 

389,306

Sub-Total: - 1,800,364

Economy & Environment Various 1 day additional leave arising from the 2022/23 pay 

settlement and 5 days additional leave endorsed by Cabinet 

(14 December 2022)

701,866

Economy & Environment Community & Leisure Waste - Reduction in WG Sustainable Waste Management 

Grant

25,000

Economy & Environment Community & Leisure New Head of Waste post and regrading of three existing 

posts to deliver the emerging Waste Management Strategy

150,039

Page 55



APPENDIX 2

2023/24 General Fund Inescapable Service Pressures

Directorate Service Area Details 2023-24 

Growth

(£)

Economy & Environment Infrastructure Engineering Projects Group (EPG) - Additional inspections 

and remedials for Structures (Bridges and Culverts)

70,000

Economy & Environment Infrastructure Additional Home to School Transport costs due to age 

eligibility increases for Additional Learning Needs (ALN) 

pupils

100,000

Economy & Environment Infrastructure Adjustment to budgets to reflect loss of income arising from 

reduced Car Parking charges

83,000

Economy & Environment Infrastructure Increased contract costs for Home to School Transport taxi 

provision

100,000

Economy & Environment Infrastructure Reduction in Concessionary Fares Administration Grant 30,000

Economy & Environment Community & Leisure Green Spaces & Transport Services - Additional costs arising 

from the switch from Red to White Diesel

34,000

Economy & Environment Community & Leisure Sport and Leisure - Additional budget requirement following 

the regrading of 2 members of staff

22,420

Sub-Total: - 1,316,325

Social Services Children's Services Increased demand and complexity of Children's placements 3,940,000

Social Services Adult Services Increased demand for care packages for vulnerable adults 510,000

Social Services Adult Services Reprovisioning of home care packages returned by 

independent providers

42,000

Social Services Adult Services Provision for impact of enhanced fire regulations in supported 

living accommodation

303,000

Social Services Adult Services Anticipated increases in fees for independent sector 

providers in relation to the Real Living Wage, energy costs 

and wider inflationary pressures.

2,833,000

Social Services Various Additional posts (3.52 FTE's) required to address increasing 

demands

158,000

Social Services Various 1 day additional leave arising from the 2022/23 pay 

settlement and 5 days additional leave endorsed by Cabinet 

(14 December 2022)

500,000

Social Services Adult Services Review of supported living rotas to address support needs of 

current service users

232,000

Social Services Adult Services Contribution to Regional Independent Domestic Violence 

Advocacy Service

78,000

Social Services Caerphilly Cares Review of Caerphilly Cares Service and withdrawal of short-

term funding

697,000

Sub-Total: - 9,293,000

Social Services General Fund Housing Additional staffing capacity in the Private Housing Team to 

deliver emerging Strategies, and budget realignment due to 

reduced levels of agency fee income. 

635,000

Social Services General Fund Housing 1 day additional leave arising from the 2022/23 pay 

settlement and 5 days additional leave endorsed by Cabinet 

(14 December 2022)

15,000

Social Services General Fund Housing Temporary Accommodation - Significant increase in B&B 

placements. This increase in costs is net of 2023/24 grant 

funding from WG totalling £623k. The position remains 

volatile moving forward, albeit that a reduction is anticipated 

over time.

1,747,052

Sub-Total: - 2,397,052

Education & Lifelong Learning Home to School/College 

Transport

Increases in prices following the renewal of bus contracts 589,000

Education & Lifelong Learning Additional Learning Needs Additional funding requirement to support cost pressures 

arising from increasing demand and to support the ALN 

Reform Act.

319,000

Education & Lifelong Learning Vulnerable Learner (EOTAS) Full-year impact of previously agreed additional classroom at 

Glan Y Nant 

122,000

Education & Lifelong Learning All 1 day additional leave arising from the 2022/23 pay 

settlement and 5 days additional leave endorsed by Cabinet 

(14 December 2022)

1,235,000

Sub-Total: - 2,265,000

TOTAL: - 18,542,182

Page 56



APPENDIX 3

2023/24 Savings Proposals

Reference 

Number

Directorate Service Area Details 2023-24 

Permanent 

Savings

2023-24 

Temporary 

Savings

(£) (£)

CS1 Corporate Services All Adjustment to gross pay budgets to incorporate vacancy 

management

(742,245)

CS2 Corporate Services All Reduction in mileage budgets to reflect new flexible working 

models 

(43,500)

CS3 Corporate Services Director Budget realignment on various budgets (10,000)

CS4 Corporate Services Legal & Governance Service Level Agreement (SLA) income from collaborative 

arrangements 

(20,000)

CS5 Corporate Services Legal & Governance Budget realignment on various budgets (5,800)

CS6 Corporate Services Financial Services Deletion of vacant Grade 5 Housing Benefits Assessor post (33,591)

CS7 Corporate Services Financial Services Budget realignment on various budgets held by Head of 

Service

(5,000)

CS8 Corporate Services Financial Services Deletion of vacant Grade 5 Accounts Assistant post in the 

Finance Support Unit

(33,591)

CS9 Corporate Services Financial Services Deletion of vacant Grade 5 Administrative Assistant post in 

the Cashiers Administration Team

(33,591)

CS10 Corporate Services Policy Reduction in the Community Empowerment Fund  budget 

from £358,176 to £250,000. Any underspend on the 2022/23 

budget will be  carried forward into the 2023/24 financial year.

(108,176)

CS11 Corporate Services Policy Deletion of uncommitted community projects budget (14,070)

CS12 Corporate Services Policy Deletion of uncommitted Sustainable Development budget (21,000)

CS13 Corporate Services Policy Deletion of the uncommitted Technical Assistance budget (12,180)

CS14 Corporate Services Policy Voluntary Sector Service Level Agreement (SLA) budget 

realignment

(25,200)

Sub-Total: - (365,699) (742,245)

MF1 Corporate Services Miscellaneous Finance Budget realignment for External Audit fees (30,000)

MF2 Corporate Services Miscellaneous Finance No revenue contribution to Capital Programme for 2023/24 

only

(1,880,711)

MF3 Corporate Services Miscellaneous Finance Uncommitted Free School Meals Grant transferred into the 

Financial Settlement in previous years. This is for one year 

only and will be reviewed for 2024/25.

(322,250)

MF4 Corporate Services Miscellaneous Finance Additional investment income due to increases in the Bank of 

England Base Rate. This is for 2023/24 only at this stage due 

to the volatility of the Base Rate and will be reviewed for 

2024/25

(1,889,136)

MF5 Corporate Services Miscellaneous Finance Removal of Carbon Reduction Commitment Scheme budget 

which has ended with no replacement scheme being 

implemented.

(246,839)

MF6 Corporate Services Miscellaneous Finance Budget realignment on the Council Tax Reduction Scheme 

(CTRS) budget

(250,000)

Sub-Total: - (526,839) (4,092,097)

EE1 Economy & Environment All Reduction in mileage budgets to reflect new flexible working 

models 

(82,710)

EE2 Economy & Environment Property Temporary 20% reduction in non-essential Building 

Maintenance budgets

(300,000)

EE3 Economy & Environment Infrastructure Temporary reduction in the Highways Maintenance budget (922,000)

EE4 Economy & Environment Infrastructure Withdrawal of subsidy for the Blackwood to Ystrad Mynach 

Rail Link bus service

(120,000)

EE5 Economy & Environment Infrastructure School Crossing Patrols - Withdrawal of funding where posts 

become vacant and ROSPA criteria is not met

(100,000)

EE6 Economy & Environment Community & Leisure 

Services

12% increase in fees for Sports pitches (5,783)

EE7 Economy & Environment Community & Leisure 

Services

Reduce Grass Cutting (bio diversity) through a reduction in 

agency workers

(59,000)

EE8 Economy & Environment Community & Leisure 

Services

Temporary reduction in the Cemeteries Maintenance Budget (40,000)

EE9 Economy & Environment Community & Leisure 

Services

Closure of Ty Fry Farm following end of the lease in March 

2023 with staff relocated to Ty Bargoed

(12,000)

EE10 Economy & Environment Community & Leisure 

Services

Reduction in transport budgets within Country Parks (12,000)

EE11 Economy & Environment Community & Leisure 

Services

Additional Income from new Tennis facilities (5,000)

EE12 Economy & Environment Community & Leisure 

Services

Increase in current MOT fee by £10 to £45 (5,000)

EE13 Economy & Environment Community & Leisure 

Services

Additional income from the sale of felled timber (10,000)

EE14 Economy & Environment Community & Leisure 

Services

Review of Leisure Fees & Charges (75,000)

EE15 Economy & Environment Community & Leisure 

Services

Tapered reduction of 4 hours in the subsidy for Caretaker 

costs in Community Centres over a three-year period from 

October 2023 (we currently fund 11 hours)

(17,167)

EE16 Economy & Environment Community & Leisure 

Services

Tapered withdrawal of the subsidy for Markham Community 

Leisure Centre over a three-year period from April 2023.

(3,334)

EE17 Economy & Environment Public Protection CCTV - Replace 9 4G cameras with a more cost effective 

option

(6,000)

EE18 Economy & Environment Public Protection Management fee for CCTV Service Level Agreement (SLA) 

with Blaenau Gwent CBC

(10,000)

Page 57



APPENDIX 3

2023/24 Savings Proposals

Reference 

Number

Directorate Service Area Details 2023-24 

Permanent 

Savings

2023-24 

Temporary 

Savings

(£) (£)

EE19 Economy & Environment Public Protection Increased Ceremony Income in Registrars - Temporary 

saving only as additional income is due to back-log following 

Covid-19

(10,000)

EE20 Economy & Environment Regeneration Tourism Venues - Reduction in subsidy across the portfolio 

(total subsidy is currently £1.293m) 

(250,000)

EE21 Economy & Environment Regeneration Deletion of Shop Administration Assistant post at Llancaiach 

Fawr following retirement

(30,678)

EE22 Economy & Environment Regeneration Temporary reduction in the Community Enterprise Fund 

(CEF) budget 

(62,350)

Sub-Total: - (803,672) (1,334,350)

SS1 Social Services Adult Services Children With Disabilities - Budget realignment to reflect 

demand

(69,000)

SS2 Social Services Adult Services Budget realignment - Non-residential care income from 

service users

(68,000)

SS3 Social Services Children's Services Reduction in mileage budgets to reflect new flexible working 

models 

(50,000)

SS4 Social Services Children's Services Budget realignment - foster care recruitment & retention (18,000)

SS5 Social Services Children's Services Budget realignment - prevention budgets (30,000)

SS6 Social Services Children's Services Reduction in contribution to regional Continuing Healthcare 

(CHC) post

(10,000)

SS7 Social Services Adult Services Reduction in mileage budgets to reflect new flexible working 

models 

(50,000)

SS8 Social Services Adult Services Budget realignment - short-term placements (49,000)

SS9 Social Services Adult Services Budget realignment - Shared Lives placements (225,000)

SS10 Social Services Business Support Reduction in mileage budgets to reflect new flexible working 

models 

(5,000)

SS11 Social Services Business Support Budget realignment - other office expenses (2,000)

SS12 Social Services Business Support Budget realignment - Delivering Transformation Project (18,000)

Sub-Total: - (594,000) 0

ELL1 Education & Lifelong Learning All Reduction in mileage budgets to reflect new flexible working 

models 

(35,000)

ELL2 Education & Lifelong Learning LMS Contingency Reduction in the Local Management of Schools (LMS) 

Contingency budget 

(60,000)

ELL3 Education & Lifelong Learning Management & Support 

Services

Reduction in equipment, computer and IT related expenditure (20,000)

ELL4 Education & Lifelong Learning Support Services & 

Resources 

Deletion of vacant part-time post (14,500)

ELL5 Education & Lifelong Learning Additional Learning Needs Redesign of support for Health & Safety assessments (35,000)

ELL7 Education & Lifelong Learning Music Service 10% reduction in budget (42,600)

ELL8 Education & Lifelong Learning Learning, Education and 

Inclusion

Budget Realignment - WJEC and Subscriptions budgets (25,000)

ELL9 Education & Lifelong Learning Lifelong Learning Budget Realignment - Administration Service Level 

Agreement (SLA) with Property Services 

(11,131)

ELL10 Education & Lifelong Learning Education Achievement 

Service (EAS)

10% reduction in contribution to EAS (98,000)

ELL11 Education & Lifelong Learning Other Direct School Related 

Expenditure

Fund 50% Repairs & Maintenance contribution to schools 

from the LMS Contingency Reserve for 2023/24 only

(346,320)

ELL12 Education & Lifelong Learning Rising 3's Budget realignment based on demand (15,000)

ELL13 Education & Lifelong Learning Psychology Service Vacancy management due to staff turnover (50,000)

ELL14 Education & Lifelong Learning Early Years Central Team Some existing posts to be funded through grants in 2023/24 (100,000)

ELL15 Education & Lifelong Learning Youth Service Temporary budget reduction (125,000)

ELL16 Education & Lifelong Learning Libraries 20% reduction in Book Fund (57,000)

Sub-Total: - (341,231) (693,320)

ELL17 Education & Lifelong Learning Schools It is currently estimated that additional energy costs for 

schools in 2023/24 will be £4.682m. It is proposed that 

schools are asked to manage 50% of this increase through 

energy reduction initiatives and wider cost efficiencies.

(2,341,102)

Sub-Total: - (2,341,102) 0

TOTALS: - (4,972,543) (6,862,012)

Page 58



APPENDIX 4

Proposed Use of Service Reserves

Description Amount     

(£)

Justification for Repurposing

Corporate Services

Asylum Dispersal Area Policy Officer 6,548 Post funded from grant

Policy ASB Co-ordinator 20,000 Post funded from grant

AP Forensics Software (Fraud Monitoring) 391 Uncommitted balance on previously approved reserve

Grade 5 Council Tax 26,700 Uncommitted balance on previously approved reserve

Making Tax Digital Software Update 13,145 Uncommitted balance on previously approved reserve

Digital Strategy (Abavus) 268,955 Abavus is now funded from the Digital Services revenue 

budget

Welsh Community Care Information System (WCCIS) 

maintenance

226 Uncommitted balance on previously approved reserve

Caerphilly 2022 Leadership 922 Uncommitted balance on previously approved reserve

50% Additional Scrutiny Officer 17,685 Uncommitted balance on previously approved reserve

Additional Members Allowances 8,700 Uncommitted balance on previously approved reserve

Storm Dennis 146,000 Uncommitted balance on previously approved reserve

Contract Management Review in Waste Services 216,000 Balance on previously approved reserve.

Ty Penallta Lighting 16,067 Scheme now completed

Health & Safety Team Laptops 3,500 Uncommitted balance on previously approved reserve

1yr Fixed-Term Post in Corporate Property (Land Sales) 48,000 Post funded from core revenue budget

1yr Fixed-Term Post Corporate Property (Electrician) 35,000 Post funded from core revenue budget

Ty Penallta Café 4,896 Scheme now completed

Careline 277,887 Uncommitted ring-fenced underspends on the Careline 

revenue budget

Members Allowances 396,049 Uncommitted ring-fenced underspends on the Member 

Allowances revenue budget

Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS) 1,755,610 Uncommitted ring-fenced underspends on the CTRS budget. 

There is sufficient core revenue budget for CTRS as the 

budget is increased annually in line with agreed uplifts for 

Council Tax.

Sub-Total: - 3,262,281

Social Services

Equipment to Enable single-handed home care calls 151,800 There has been additional investment in GWICES from 

regional funding

Operation Jasmine Legal Support 30,000 Complete

Feasibility study in respect of delivering telecare options. 40,000 Social Care Recovery Grant used instead

Care Home Visiting and Lateral Flow Testing 184,000 Scope of WG Covid-19 Hardship Fund was extended to 

include testing

WCCIS Reporting Officer 95,000 £40k per year performance improvement grant confirmed to 

2024/25

Regional Continuing Care post 8,713 Regional funding used instead

Tackling backlog of minor works of adaptation 100,000 WLGA promoting independence grant to be used instead

Social Work long-term absence cover 100,000 Would be at risk - Cover will need to be funded by other 

vacancies

Bargoed High Street - MyST Hub 188,000 Work now complete and was partially funded from the Social 

Care Recovery Grant

Family Intervention Team 59,700 Grant funded in 2022/23 and will not be funding the Team 

moving forward

Communications Officer 37,058 Only fund for 12 months

Safe Families Contract 32,700 Only fund to 31/3/23

Residential Homes management capacity 44,500 Only fund for 12 months

Hafod Deg Damp Issues 48,000 Significant increase in estimated cost for these works so did 

not progress

Sub-Total: - 1,119,471

Education & Lifelong Learning

Bridges Into Work 2 402,750 Uncommitted balance on previously approved reserve

Working Skills for Adults 2 200,250 Uncommitted balance on previously approved reserve

Inspire to Work 10,000 Uncommitted balance on previously approved reserve

Retaned Underspends Reserve 78,000 Uncommitted balance on reserve

Arts Practitioner 60,000 Funded from grant

Pupil Learning Opportunity 70,000 Uncommitted balance on previously approved reserve

Additional Learning Needs (ALN) Co-ordinator 130,000 Funded from core revenue budget

Sub-Total: - 951,000

TOTAL: - 5,332,752

Page 59



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 60



APPENDIX 5

MOVEMENT ON GENERAL FUND

£'000 £'000

Opening Balance 01/04/2022 27,235

2022/23 Proposed Use of Balances in lieu of Council Tax Surplus (1,050)

Take From General Fund Previously Agreed by Council: -

In-year impact of 2022/23 pay awards (6,860)

Cost-of-Living Hardship Fund (3,000)

Cost-of-Living Crisis contingency (2,098)

Home to School/College Transport (460)

Wi-Fi infrastructure review (100)

Heolddu Leisure Centre fitness equipment (100)

Emporium Car Park repairs (100)

Highway inspections (Covid-19 backlog) (120)

External asbestos surveys (100)

Modern Patch Management Tool (100)

Cloud migrations (500)

Canal refurbishment (200)

Additional RSG (Electric Vehicles/driving lessons for care workers) (595) (14,333)

Current General Fund Balance 11,852

Net Take to General Fund from Projected 2022/23 Outturn 2,239

Proposed Use of Balances in lieu of Council Tax Surplus to Support 

2023/24 Budget

(1,050)

Projected Balance 31/03/2023 13,041

Page 61



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 62



APPENDIX 6

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2023/24 to 2025/26

Scheme 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26

 £000's  £000's  £000's 

Education and Lifelong Learning

Health & Safety Regulations Works 296 296 296

Basic Needs Accommodation 221 221 221

School Security 150 62 62

School Asset Management 420 590 590

School Boiler Replacement Programme 335 253 253

Total Education & Lifelong Learning 1,422 1,422 1,422

Economy & Environment

Sport Pitches 30 30 30

Total Community & Leisure Services 30 30 30

Environmental Schemes 200 200 200

Total Countryside 200 200 200

Community Enterprise Fund Grants 80 80 80

Town Centres 18 18 18

Total Economic Regeneration 98 98 98

Infrastructure Retaining Walls 314 314 314

Street Lighting 50 50 50

Land Purchase-Future Schemes 40 40 40

Major Highway Reconstruction 739 739 739

Bridge Strengthening 441 441 441

Land Drainage- Corporate 123 123 123

Land Drainage - Non Corporate 123 123 123

Vehicle Restraint Systems 148 148 148

Corporate Maintenance - Tips Mines Spoils 246 246 246

Monmouth & Brecon Canal. 200 200 200

Footway Reconstruction 148 148 148

Total Infrastructure 2,572 2,572 2,572

CCTV Replacement 74 74 74

Kitchen Refurbishments 419 419 419

Total Public Protection 493 493 493

Corporate Asset Management 690 690 690

Total Property 690 690 690

Page 63



Total Economy & Environment 4,083 4,083 4,083

Social Services & Housing

Condition Surveys 340 340 340

Total Social Services 340 340 340

Disabled Facility Grants 1,133 1,133 1,133

Home Imp Grants/Miscellaneous 246 246 246

Home Repair Grant 788 788 788

Total Private Housing 2,167 2,167 2,167

Total Social Services & Housing 2,507 2,507 2,507

Corporate Services

IT Hardware & Software 200 200 200

Total ICT 200 200 200

Total Corporate Services 200 200 200

Corporate Projects 3,424 1,456 1,387

Total Capital Programme 11,636 9,668 9,599

Page 64



APPENDIX 7

Updated Medium-Term Financial Plan

Description 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26

£000s £000s £000s

Increase in Aggregate External Finance (6.9%, 2.71%, 1%) 22,152 9,203 3,488

Increase in Council Tax (7.9%, 4.5%, 3.9%) 6,147 3,826 3,483

Total Funding to Support Budget 28,299 13,030 6,971

General Fund Services Inflationary Pressures

National Joint Council (NJC) Pay Award (5%, 3%, 2%) 10,588 4,824 3,312

Increase in Employer Pension Contributions (NJC Staff) 1,106 1,117 560

Foundation Living Wage 218 218 218

Non-Pay Inflation  (Various, 3%, 2%) 13,262 6,209 4,524

Non-Pay Inflation (Fees and Charges) - (5%, 3%, 2%) (793) (499) (429)

Total General Fund Services Inflationary Pressures 24,381 11,869 8,186

General Fund Inescapable Service Pressures

Corporate Services 1,470 700 392

Miscellaneous Finance 1,800 1,021 639

Economy & Environment 1,316 448 166

Social Services 9,293 6,799 4,555

General Fund Housing 2,397 1,156 (303)

Education & Lifelong Learning 2,265 556 0

Total General Fund Inescapable Service Pressures 18,542 10,680 5,450

Schools Cost Pressures

Teachers Pay Award (3.5%, 3%, 2%) 4,423 2,880 2,235

National Joint Council (NJC) Pay Award for School Based Staff (5%, 3%, 2%) 935 488 338

Increase in Employer Pension Contributions (NJC Staff) 163 167 97

Non-Pay Inflation  (Various, 3%, 2%) 5,524 899 629

Schools Service Pressures 1,509 1,292 995

Total Schools Cost Pressures 12,555 5,726 4,294

Proposed Savings/Use of Reserves

Permanent savings proposals 4,972 38 38

Temporary savings proposals 6,862 0 0

Use of reserves 15,345 0 0

Total Proposed Savings/Use of Reserves 27,179 38 38

Reinstatement of 2023/24 Temporary Savings Proposals and Use of Reserves 0 22,207 0

Annual Shortfall 0 37,414 10,921

Cumulative Shortfall 0 37,414 48,335

Page 65



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 66



APPENDIX 8 

 
 

DRAFT BUDGET PROPOSALS FOR 2023/24 
FEEDBACK FROM CAERPHILLY UNISON 

 
Caerphilly Unison has now had the opportunity to consider and take the views of our 

membership on the Draft Budget Proposals for 2023/24 and would offer the following 
comments: 

 
The cost pressures being faced by Caerphilly county borough council are significant but sadly 
not uncommon across the public sector in Wales and UK.  The increasing rate of inflation, 

energy costs and the price of goods is clearly a position which is unsustainable for many public 
sector organisations, and without immediate investment from the UK Government will see a 

decline in our services and the health and well-being of communities the likes of which we have 
not seen before. 
 

We agree that the Local Authority cannot move forward with a ‘salami slice’ approach to 
managing the situation we have before us. 

 
We welcome the additional funding of 6.9% from the Welsh Government but must add that in 
real terms this is well below the current rate of inflation (10.7% - HM Treasury Nov 2022). 

 
Section 5.3.4 of the report refers to 5% being assumed for April 2023 for the NJC pay award.  It 

is important to note that the recognised NJC trade unions have recently submitted a claim to the 
Employers side asking for RPI + 2% (12.7%).  We believe this is a fair and realistic pay claim 
given the current financial climate. 

 
Section 5.7.5 of the report refers to ‘a new relationship will need to be built with staff and 

communities.’  UNISON would ask for further clarification on what is meant by this statement. 
 
Section 5.7.13 (1) of the report refers to ‘undertake a strategic review of support services across 

all services to create multi-disciplined roles serving the whole organisation.’   Again, UNISON 
would ask for further clarification on what is meant by this statement. 

 
Section 5.7.13 (2) of the report refers to ‘annual financial targets will be provided to each 
Corporate Director and respective Head of Service to help frame the overall requirement.’  We 

are unclear how this approach will be different to that of ‘salami slicing’, a strategy which the 
report has already chosen not to employ.  Many years of falling budgets have seen Directors 

and Head of Service given a percentage saving figure to achieve.  We are unclear how this 
approach would deliver different outcomes. 
 

This section of the report refers to a number of ‘areas for review’.  UNISON would ask for 
clarification on why these areas have been selected and what are the desired outcomes. 

 
In Section 9 of the report, the Local authority has chosen to continue its approach of not filling 
vacant posts.  Whilst we appreciate that this is a more favourable approach than compulsory 

redundancy, UNISON have been given assurances from the Chief Executive that the Authority 
would be looking to put ‘more boots on the ground.’ Accordingly, we are keen to explore this Page 67



statement further with the Corporate management team and understand where vacancies are 
not filled the impact that this will have on remaining staff in terms of workload, expectations and 

wellbeing. 
 
Section 9.2 of the report refers to the Trade Unions being ‘fully engaged in proposals to reshape 

services moving forward’.  UNISON would welcome this as concerns have been raised with the 
Chief Executive and Leader with regards to the approach taken on methods of consultation with 

the trade unions in this respect. 
 
Unfortunately, UNISON has not had the opportunity to meet with Directors and/or Heads of 

Services to discuss the budget proposals prior to public consultation and therefore there are 
multiple areas within the Draft Budget Report that we would ask for further clarification on, in 

particular around: 
 

 Cost associated to annual leave 

 Areas of budget re-alignment 

 Areas of vacancy management and the deletion of posts 

 The creation of additional posts 

 Reduction in mileage budgets 

 
UNISON would also like to highlight the considerable cost savings of approximately £266k from 
mileage budgets.  While this is positive for the Local authority, we would seek to understand 

how these savings have been arrived at and would hope that such savings have not merely 
been transferred on to the shoulders of staff to bear. 

 
Specific comments have also been received from our membership concerning the impact of 
raising Council tax to 7.9% and the way in which information is presented to the public for 

consultation.  It has been suggested that the Local Authority may wish to consider including the 
following in future public consultations: 

 Provide a data table showing total budget allocations across Directorates and Services 
(Revenue and Capital); 

 Show and explain the impacts of efficiency savings and the wider community impacts; 

 Explain what and why reserves are being held back;  

 Attach an Organisation Chart to show the diversity and complexity of our services; 

 Highlight pay and remuneration across the different Directorates and service staffing 
levels; 

 Structure the finance information tables in a logical order for easier understanding; 

 Guidance for improvements previously communicated by the Council Regulators; 

 Explain how proposals align with service/public needs; 

 Explain how proposals align with current published Manifestos, Strategies, Priorities etc.; 

 Feedback from staff and trade unions to address service delivery needs and concerns; 

 Show commitments to address known service transformation, corporate/service reviews; 

 Show how proposals align and impact on the Well-being of Future Generations Act 2015 – 

goals; 

 Show the strategic risks faced by the Council, and  

 Offer a clear structure and building blocks of information. 

As always, UNISON is happy to discuss any aspect of our feedback. 
 

Lianne Dallimore 
Caerphilly UNISON Branch Secretary 

Juan-Antonio Garcia 
Caerphilly UNISON Branch Chair 

 

Page 68


	Agenda
	3 Cabinet 25fed Ionawr 2023.
	4 Cabinet fel Ymddiriedolwyr Sefydliad y Glowyr Coed Duon a gynhaliwyd ar 25 Ionawr 2023.
	5 Blaenraglen Waith y Cabinet.
	6 Grant Cartrefi Gwag Cenedlaethol.
	7 Ffurfioli Model y Gwasanaeth Ieuenctid.
	8 Cynllun Rhyddhad Ardrethi Manwerthu, Hamdden a Lletygarwch Llywodraeth Cymru 2023/24.
	9 Cynigion Cyllideb 2023/24.
	Atodiad 1
	Atodiad 2
	Atodiad 3
	Atodiad 4
	Atodiad 5
	Atodiad 6
	Atodiad 7
	Atodiad 8


